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West Virginia Department of Education 
Office of School Operations & Finance – School Facilities  

 
Introduction:  The Wood County Board of Education respectfully requests approval for the closure of 
VanDevender Middle School and its merger into Jackson Middle School and Hamilton Middle School. This 
closure is not contingent on any other actions and is proposed to occur at the end of the 2024-2025 school 
year.  

Action:  The Wood County Board of Education requests approval of the following: 

• The closure of VanDevender Middle School and its merger into Jackson Middle School and 
Hamilton Middle School. This closure is not contingent on any other actions and is proposed to 
occur at the end of the 2024-2025 school year. In consideration of this closure, applicable West 
Virginia State Board of Education policies were reviewed and followed. Documents were available 
for public inspection for the required amount of time, and a closure hearing was held for 
VanDevender Middle School on October 21, 2024. Receiving hearings were held for Hamilton 
Middle School and Jackson Middle School on October 24, 2024. The Wood County Board of 
Education voted to approve these closures at their October 24, 2024 board meeting. 



















































































































































































































































































































Monday, October 21, 2024
Special Meeting - VanDevender Middle School Hearing

6:00 p.m.
VanDevender Middle School
918 31st Street
Parkersburg, WV 26104

1. Meeting Procedure
Subject : A. School Closure Hearing Procedure

Meeting : Oct 21, 2024 - Special Meeting - VanDevender Middle 
School Hearing

Category : 1. Meeting Procedure

Access : Public

Type : Procedural

Public Content
The Wood County Board of Education will hold three (3) public hearings on the Superintendents 
recommendation to close VanDevender Middle School at the end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to 
merge it into Jackson Middle School and Hamilton Middle School at that time, as follow:

LOCATION: VanDevender Middle School, 918 31st Street, Parkersburg, WV
DATE AND TIME: October 21, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.
Sign in to speak between 5:30 p.m. and 6:00 p.m.

LOCATION: Hamilton Middle School, 3501 Cadillac Drive, Parkersburg, WV
DATE AND TIME: October 24, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.
Sign in to speak between 5:30 p.m. and 6:00 p.m.

LOCATION: Jackson Middle School, 1601 34th Street, Vienna, WV
DATE AND TIME: October 24, 2024, at 7:30 p.m.
Sign in to speak between 7:00 p.m. and 7:30 p.m.

If, at the time a hearing is called to order, the Board determines that the location is of insufficient size to 
accommodate all who desire to attend, the hearing will be recessed and moved to a new location of 
sufficient size to accommodate all those who desire to attend. If that happens, the new meeting location 
will be posted at the original meeting location.

If a public hearing is not completed by 11:00 p.m., it will be recessed, to be continued on a date and at a 
time designated and announced by the Board just prior to the hearing recess, to be continued day-to-day 
until concluded. The public hearings, as well as any reconvened session of the public hearings, shall end 
at the conclusion of each hearings business or at 11:00 p.m., whichever occurs earlier.

ALTERNATE DATES AND TIMES

If, due to inclement weather or other cause, any hearing cannot be held on the scheduled date, the 
hearing or meeting will be held at the same location and time as originally scheduled, but on these dates 
and times:

for the hearing at VanDevender Middle School, on October 25, 2024, beginning at6:00 p.m.



for the hearing at Hamilton Middle School, on October 29, 2024, beginning at 6:00 p.m.
for the hearing at Jackson Middle School, on October 29, 2024, beginning at 7:30 p.m.

If for any reason a hearing cannot be conducted on the alternate date or time, the Board will determine a 
date or time.

HEARING PROCEDURES

For a period of 30 minutes prior to the commencement of a public hearing, persons may and are 
encouraged to register at the hearing location for the purpose of making statements, offering testimony, 
and questioning school officials concerning the proposals. Each hearing will begin with an oral summary 
by a representative of Wood County Schools of the reasons and supporting data in connection with the 
proposed action by the Board. Speakers will then be recognized in the order in which they registered. 
Each speaker shall be limited to five (5) minutes unless, in accordance with Board Policy 1000, the 
President reduces that time limit to provide all persons wishing to speak the opportunity to do so.

SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN MATERIAL

The Board will consider any written material submitted by members of the public concerning the 
proposals if the material, with six (6) copies, is submitted to and received by the Office of the 
Superintendent of Schools at 1210 13th Street, Parkersburg, West Virginia, before noon on
October 17, 2024, including any findings and recommendations from the local school improvement 
councils representing VanDevender, Hamilton and Jackson Middle Schools.

REASONS AND SUPPORTING DATA

Until the date of the first hearing, written reasons for the Superintendents recommendations in the form of 
an Impact Statement and Supporting Data are available for public inspection in the Office of the 
Superintendent of Schools at 1210 13th Street, Parkersburg, West Virginia, on weekdays between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.

FINAL ACTION

The Board of Education will take formal action on the Superintendents proposal to close VanDevender 
Middle School at the end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to merge it into Jackson Middle School and 
Hamilton Middle School, at its meeting at Jackson Middle School,1601 34th Street, Vienna, West 
Virginia, on October 24, 2024, beginning at 8:30 p.m. If, due to inclement weather or other cause, the 
Board meeting cannot be held on the scheduled date, the meeting will be held at the same location and 
time as originally scheduled, but on October 29, 2024.

Christie M. Willis,
Superintendent
Wood County Board of Education

2. Opening of Meeting
Subject : A. Call to Order

Meeting : Oct 21, 2024 - Special Meeting - VanDevender Middle 
School Hearing



Category : 2. Opening of Meeting

Access : Public

Type : Procedural

Subject : B. Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance

Meeting : Oct 21, 2024 - Special Meeting - VanDevender Middle 
School Hearing

Category : 2. Opening of Meeting

Access : Public

Type : Procedural

Subject : C. Roll Call

Meeting : Oct 21, 2024 - Special Meeting - VanDevender Middle 
School Hearing

Category : 2. Opening of Meeting

Access : Public

Type : Procedural

3. VanDevender Middle School Hearing
Subject : A. Summary of Proposed Action Presented by 

Administration

Meeting : Oct 21, 2024 - Special Meeting - VanDevender Middle 
School Hearing

Category : 3. VanDevender Middle School Hearing

Access : Public

Type : Information

Public Content

Subject : B. Delegation and Public Comment

Meeting : Oct 21, 2024 - Special Meeting - VanDevender Middle 
School Hearing

Category : 3. VanDevender Middle School Hearing

Access : Public

Type : Information

Public Content

4. Closing of Meeting
Subject : A. Adjournment



Meeting : Oct 21, 2024 - Special Meeting - VanDevender Middle 
School Hearing

Category : 4. Closing of Meeting

Access : Public

Type :

















   

Wood County Board of Education 

Special Meeting – VanDevender Middle School Hearing 

Monday, October 21, 2024 

VanDevender Middle School and Via YouTube 

6:00 pm 

Minutes 

      1.  Meeting Procedure 

 

           A.  School Closure Hearing Procedure 

 

                 President Raber stated that the procedure, as well as the agenda, had been published.   

                 He explained that the Summary of the Proposed Action would be presented by the 

                 Administration, which would be Superintendent Willis and following that, it would  

                 be opened up for public comments and delegations.  President Raber also reviewed 

                 the rules established for the hearing. 

 

2.  Opening of Meeting 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Wood County Board of Education met on Monday, October 21, 2024 at 

VanDevender Middle School, 918 31st St., Parkersburg, WV.  President Raber called 

the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 

            B.  Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

                  A moment of silence was held, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 C.  Roll Call 

 

      The following Board members were present:  Justin Raber, Rick Olcott, Ron Tice,  

      and Judy Johnson.  Sarah Townsend was absent. 

 

       A quorum was established. 

 

      3.  VanDevender Middle School Hearing           
 

 A.  Summary of Proposed Action Presented by Administration 

 

Over the last decade, the Wood County Board of Education has had a decline in  

student enrollment. Wood County has had a 1,929 decrease in student population 

from 2014 through 2024.The proposal before us is to consolidate services. The 

specific proposal is to merge VanDevender Middle School into the current Hamilton 

Middle School and Jackson Middle School resulting in the closure of VanDevender 

Middle School. 

 

      During the past 10 years, VanDevender Middle School’s height of enrollment was       

      the 2017-2018 school year at 415 students. The enrollment of VanDevender Middle  

      School as of August 9, 2024, was 248 students. The program utilization for   

      VanDevender Middle School has a capacity for 728 students; therefore, with an  

      enrollment of 248 students, the program utilization of the facility is 34.1%.  The  

      desirable program utilization for a school is 85%. 

 

      Over the past 10 years, Hamilton Middle School’s height of enrollment was the 2015  

      – 2016 school year at 555 students. As of August 9, 2024, the enrollment of Hamilton  

      Middle School was 458 students. The program utilization for Hamilton Middle  

      School has a capacity for 784 students therefore the current program utilization of the  

      facility is 54.1%. Approximately 55% of VanDevender Middle School students will  

      attend Hamilton Middle School. The combined enrollment of VanDevender Middle   

      School merged with Hamilton Middle School is projected to be 580 students for the  

      2025-2026 school year with a program utilization of 74%. 

 

 

      Over the past 10 years, Jackson Middle Schools’ height of enrollment was during the     



   

      2021 –2022 school year at 519 students. As of August 9, 2024, the enrollment of  

      Jackson Middle School was 440 students. The program utilization for Jackson Middle  

      School has a capacity for 728 students; therefore, the program utilization is 60.4%.   

      Approximately 45% of VanDevender Middle School students will attend Jackson  

      Middle School. The combined enrollment of VanDevender Middle School merged   

      with Jackson Middle School is projected to be 520 students for the 2025-2026 school  

      year with a program utilization of 71.4%. 

 

      The closure of VanDevender Middle School to merge with Hamilton Middle School    

      and Jackson Middle School will result in a reduction of 4 professional personnel    

      positions and 3.5 service personnel positions.  Hamilton Middle School will be  

      designated a Title I School. 

 

Hamilton Middle School is located 1.3 miles away from VanDevender Middle    

School, if traveling on 32nd Street.  Jackson Middle School is located 3.8 miles away   

from VanDevender Middle School, if traveling on Grand Central Avenue.   

Transportation will be provided and not exceed 45 minutes to either middle school as  

required by Policy 6200.   For extracurricular activities, many students at  

VanDevender walk to practices.  Wood County Schools will provide an activities bus  

to transport students in the evening from Jackson Middle School to a bus stop in the  

vicinity of the current VanDevender Middle School district for students who do not  

have transportation after school hours to attend practices. 

 

      VanDevender Middle School is in fair condition and not compliant with the American   

      Disabilities Act.  Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School are in good  

      condition and ADA compliant. VanDevender Middle School has a secure vestibule.     

      Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School will have a secure vestibule  

      constructed this school year. 

 

      The closure of VanDevender Middle School and merger with Hamilton Middle   

      School and Jackson Middle School has the potential to save the Board of Education  

      $1,262,139.52 (one million, two hundred sixty-two thousand, one hundred thirty-nine  

      dollars and fifty-two cents) annually.  This cost savings is needed as a result of  

      declining enrollment.  Wood County Schools will have less funding next year as our  

      most recent full-time equivalency enrollment number has dropped to 10,991, which is  

      the number used in the state funding formula.   This is a 176 FTE decline from what  

      Wood County Schools was funded for this current school year. 

 

            B.  Delegation and Public Comment 

 

                  The following audience members spoke and asked questions/shared concerns 

                  regarding the closure  and merger of VanDevender Middle School into Jackson 

                  Middle School and Hamilton Middle School: 
 

 Sandy Bacorn 

 Christie Piersol 

 Teresa Grogg 

 Wendy George 

 Marie Krinock 

 

       4.  Closing of Meeting 

 

            A.  Adjournment             

 

       President Raber adjourned the meeting at 6:25 pm. 
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APPEARANCES 

  

WOOD COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MEMBERS 

 JUSTIN RABER 

 RICK OLCOTT 

 RON TICE 

 JUDY JOHNSON 

 SARAH TOWNSEND - ABSENT 

 

ALSO PRESENT 

  

 CHRISTIE WILLIS - WOOD COUNTY SCHOOL  

                       SUPERINTENDENT 
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----- 1 

PROCEEDINGS 2 

----- 3 

  MR. RABER:  Good evening.  It is now 6:00 p.m. 4 

and I call the special meeting of the Wood County Board 5 

of Education to order.  6 

          Please join me in a moment of silence followed 7 

by the Pledge of Allegiance.   8 

  (Moment of silence) 9 

    MR. RABER:  Thank you.  10 

  (Pledge of Allegiance) 11 

  MR. RABER:  I will note that all Board members 12 

are present with the exception of Sarah Townsend. 13 

  Moving into the Vandevender Middle School 14 

closure hearing, the procedure has been published along 15 

with the agenda for this evening.  We will first hear 16 

and have a summary of the proposed action presented by 17 

the administration.  That will be Superintendent Willis.  18 

And following that we will open it up for public comment 19 

and delegations. 20 

 ` We do have so far five speakers this evening.  21 

I think Joanna and Jason, do you have any others? 22 

  FEMALE:  No. 23 

  MR. RABER:  No?  Thank you.   24 
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     So if anyone would like to come sit in the 1 

chairs, feel free.  If not, enjoy the bleachers.  So 2 

once we do open up for delegations and public comments, 3 

what we will do is you will see over to my left, your 4 

right, the timer.  Each speaker will be permitted five 5 

minutes.  If at any point during your comments you ask a 6 

question we will pause the timer and the superintendent 7 

or member of her administrative team will provide the 8 

answer to that question. 9 

  So we will pause so that way the answer and 10 

when you're being provided with that information we will 11 

-- that time will not count against your five minutes.  12 

So hopefully I'll be able to start and stop as we go.  13 

And if possible you will have a noise at the end once 14 

the five minutes completes. 15 

  So, Board members, do you have any questions 16 

at this point in time? 17 

  (No response.) 18 

  MR. RABER:  Okay.  The other thing that we do 19 

request is during any comments or while anyone is 20 

speaking if you can please speak up loudly and clearly 21 

because we do have a court reporter here with us that is 22 

doing her job and transcribing everything that is said 23 

this evening.   24 
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          So with that before you start as speakers the 1 

one thing that I would request is after you say your 2 

name please spell your name just so that we have it 3 

accurately recorded not only for the court reporter but 4 

for the newspaper as well.   5 

So with that, Madame Superintendent. 6 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  Wood County Schools has had a 7 

1,929 student decrease in population from 2014 through 8 

2024.  The proposal before us is to consolidate 9 

services.  The specific proposal is to merge Vandevender 10 

Middle School into the current Hamilton Middle School 11 

and Jackson Middle School resulting in the closure of 12 

Vandevender Middle School. 13 

  During the past ten years Vandevender Middle 14 

School's height of enrollment was during the 2017-2018 15 

school year at 415 students.  The enrollment of 16 

Vandevender Middle School as of August 9th, 2024 was 248 17 

students.  The program utilization for Vandevender 18 

Middle School has a capacity for 728 students.  19 

Therefore with an enrollment of 248 students the program 20 

utilization of the facility is 34.1 percent.  The 21 

desirable program utilization for the school is 85 22 

percent. 23 

  Over the past ten years Hamilton Middle 24 
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School's height of enrollment was the 2015-2016 school 1 

year at 555 students.  As of August 9th, 2024 the 2 

enrollment at Hamilton Middle School was 458 students.  3 

The program utilization for Hamilton Middle School has a 4 

capacity for 784 students.  Therefore the current 5 

program utilization of the facility is 54.1 percent. 6 

  Approximately 55 percent of the Vandevender 7 

Middle School students would attend Hamilton Middle 8 

School.  The combined enrollment of Vandevender Middle 9 

School merged with Hamilton Middle School is projected 10 

to be 580 students for the 2025-2026 school year with a 11 

program utilization rate of 74 percent. 12 

  Over the past ten years Jackson Middle 13 

School's height of enrollment was during the 2021-2022 14 

school year at 519 students.  As of August 9th, 2024 the 15 

enrollment of Jackson Middle School was 440 students.  16 

The program utilization for Jackson Middle School has a 17 

capacity for 728 students.  Therefore the program 18 

utilization is 60.4 percent. 19 

  Approximately 45 percent of Vandevender Middle 20 

School students would attend Jackson Middle School.  The 21 

combined enrollment of Vandevender Middle School merged 22 

with Jackson Middle School is projected to be 520 23 

students for the 2025-2026 school year with a program 24 
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utilization of 71.4 percent. 1 

  The closure of Vandevender Middle School to 2 

merge with Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle 3 

School would result in a reduction of four professional 4 

personnel positions and three point five (3.5) service 5 

personnel positions.  Hamilton Middle School would be 6 

designated a Title I school.   7 

  Hamilton Middle School is located 1.3 miles 8 

away from Vandevender Middle School of traveling on 32nd 9 

Street.  Jackson Middle School is located 3.8 miles away 10 

from Vandevender Middle School if traveling on Grand 11 

Central Avenue.  Transportation will be provided and not 12 

exceed 45 minutes to either middle school as required by 13 

Policy 6200. 14 

  For extracurricular activities many students 15 

at Vandevender walk to practices.  Wood County Schools 16 

would provide an activities bus to transport students in 17 

the evening from Jackson Middle School to a bus stop in 18 

the vicinity of the current Vandevender Middle School 19 

district for students who do not have transportation 20 

after school hours to attend practices. 21 

  Vandevender Middle School is in fair condition 22 

and not compliant with the American Disabilities Act or 23 

ADA.  Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School 24 
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are in good condition and ADA compliant.  Vandevender 1 

Middle School has a secure vestibule.  Hamilton Middle 2 

School and Jackson Middle School will have a secure 3 

vestibule constructed this school year. 4 

  The closure of Vandevender Middle School and 5 

merger with Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle 6 

School has the potential to save the Board of Education 7 

$1,262,139.52 (one million, two hundred sixty-two 8 

thousand, one hundred thirty-nine dollars and fifty-two 9 

cents) annually.  This cost savings is needed as a 10 

result of declining enrollment. 11 

      Wood County Schools will have less funding 12 

next year as our most recent full-time equivalency 13 

enrollment number has dropped to 10,991, which is the 14 

number used in the state funding formula.  This is 176 15 

full time equivalency decline from what Wood County 16 

Schools was funded for this current school year. 17 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   18 

     Are there any questions for the superintendent 19 

at this time? 20 

  (No response) 21 

  MR. RABER:  None.  Okay.   22 

     Moving to delegations and public comments, our 23 

first speaker will be Sandy Bacorn followed by Christie 24 
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Piersol. 1 

  MS. BACORN:  Good evening.  My name's Sandy 2 

Bacorn.  I want to address the issue of -- 3 

  MR. RABER:  Can you spell your name for us, 4 

please? 5 

  MS. BACORN:  S-a-n-d-y and the last name's B-6 

a-c-o-r-n. 7 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.  8 

  MS. BACORN:  My issue is, with combining the 9 

schools, for children that have like IEPs and everything 10 

else like that, how does that work? 11 

  MR. RABER:  Madam Superintendent. 12 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  We have a closure document that 13 

we put together with personnel and the services would 14 

still have to be provided because IEPs are federal law.  15 

So the personnel document that you -- or the personnel 16 

that's listed here is a snapshot as of August 2024 so we 17 

would take -- during transfer season we would look at 18 

what those needs would be for each school and who's 19 

going where to make sure that the teachers were 20 

correctly staffed for those students at the schools 21 

where they'd be receiving. 22 

  MS. BACORN:  Okay.  And my second question is 23 

-- there's a lot of bullying because this school has a 24 
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lot of kids at low poverty.  By mixing the schools is 1 

that going to be a bigger issue with bullying and kids 2 

doing suicide? 3 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  I would hope not.  Also in our 4 

plan we had some professional development also for staff 5 

that would be PBIS which is Positive Behavior 6 

Interventions.  We also are going to put a halftime 7 

counselor at Hamilton and Jackson in addition to the 8 

counselor that they already have. 9 

  MS. BACORN:  Okay.  Those were my only two 10 

questions I had.  Thank you.  11 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   12 

     Our next speaker is Christie Piersol followed 13 

by Teresa Grogg.  I feel like I've seen you once today 14 

before, haven't I? 15 

  MS. PIERSOL:  You probably saw me downtown. 16 

  MR. RABER:  Yep. 17 

  MS. PIERSOL:  Okay.  My name is Christie, C-h-18 

r-i-s-t-i-e, sorry, last name Piersol, P-i-e-r-s-o-l.  19 

And I'm here to hopefully argue for keeping Vandy open.   20 

     I stand before you today to urge you to not 21 

close Vandy.  This school has been a cornerstone of our 22 

community.  It provides education, stability and 23 

opportunity for generations and closing it would disrupt 24 
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the lives of students and staff and it would also cause 1 

a ripple effect of negative consequences for our 2 

community at large. 3 

  First and foremost Vandy is more than just a 4 

building.  It's a community hub.  It's a place where 5 

students, parents and teachers build lasting 6 

relationships that foster a sense of belonging.  In a 7 

time where mental health concerns among youth are on the 8 

rise, closing this school would take away that 9 

importance sense of stability and community.   10 

  And as the other speaker addressed I do feel 11 

there would be an issue with bullying.  I actually went 12 

to Hamilton when Washington closed.  They were not 13 

welcomed.  They did not get along.  And I do feel that 14 

it's going to crowd the other schools and I feel that 15 

it's more ideal for smaller class sizes particularly 16 

with kids that have those IEPs and need more attention.   17 

    And furthermore I think closing the school 18 

would actually lead to more loss of population and I 19 

don't think that in the long run that it's going to be 20 

as money-saving as you guys think it is.  I feel that it 21 

will actually cost more money in the long run like 22 

building these schools up and whatnot. 23 

  And so I think that it would be a mistake and 24 
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it would disrupt lives, would hurt the education of our 1 

students and erode the strength of our community.  I 2 

urge you to reconsider and keep this school open for the 3 

benefit of our children, our community and our future.   4 

Thank you.    5 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   6 

     Our next speaker is Teresa Grogg followed by 7 

Wendy George. 8 

  MS. GROGG:  Hello.  My name is Teresa Grogg, 9 

T-e-r-e-s-a -- G-r-o-g-g. 10 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.  11 

  MS. GROGG:  Thank you for letting me speak to 12 

you tonight.  I'm here to advocate for the students, the 13 

staff and the family that is Vandevender Middle School.  14 

In 2019 then-Superintendent Will Hosaflook stated that 15 

if these closures and consolidations do not move forward 16 

I cannot fix the schools.  Mr. Hosaflook is no longer a 17 

part of Wood County Schools.  He has left us to try to 18 

make these consolidations work. 19 

     My concerns are many; financial, logistical, 20 

job security but most of all my concern is for my 21 

students.  What is going to happen when we are no longer 22 

Blue Devils?  It's like telling Steeler fans they have 23 

to become Ravens or, dare I say, like telling 24 
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Mountaineers they have to move to Pitt. 1 

  My first experience with Vandy was in the late 2 

'80s when my childhood best friend would brag about 3 

Vandy.  Of course, I would roll my eyes and snicker at 4 

her pride in her school, sure that my school, Blenny, 5 

was better.  What I didn't know now -- what I didn't 6 

know then was how right my friend was to be Vandy proud. 7 

  You see, Vandy is a unique community.  No one 8 

has a sense of family that we have.  I know because 9 

around my career starting in 1996 I've worked at the 10 

majority of Wood County schools and more than 17 school 11 

placements as an itinerant teacher in Maryland and West 12 

Virginia.  Throughout all those experiences I have never 13 

felt the support, camaraderie and dedication I've 14 

experienced as part of Vandy.  There's pride among Vandy 15 

alumni that is unlike any other alumni group.  We are a 16 

family.  Like many families we have our ups and downs, 17 

our good and our bad.  But when push comes to shove 18 

we've had each other's backs. 19 

  Vandy students, parents, teachers, now and 20 

past, can reach out and the Vandy family is there.  21 

There's simply no other school in the county that offers 22 

the kind of support, pride and sense of family as Vandy.  23 

     Our students and family are unique.  Many will 24 
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not fit into the other school climates.  The acceptance, 1 

patience and care for the Vandy students, families, 2 

staff and community simply does not exist anywhere else.  3 

For our students:  Once a Vandy kid, always a Vandy kid.  4 

If you need something reach out.  We are here. 5 

  When our school closes where will our Vandy 6 

family turn?  To Hamilton?  To Jackson?  Closing 7 

Vandevender will be like losing the family member that 8 

holds everyone together, the family member that gives 9 

everyone a safe place to be, the family member that 10 

gives everyone somewhere to come back to and feel at 11 

home. 12 

  Many of our students are former McKinley 13 

students who have already experienced the loss of their 14 

treasured school.  To have a second school demolished 15 

will not only create a bigger sense of loss of family 16 

and identity; they will not have an elementary school 17 

nor a middle school to return to as seniors and alumni.  18 

They may have a high school to share but the school 19 

family they will lose cannot be replicated or replaced.  20 

It simply does not exist in any other school in Wood 21 

County. 22 

  I spoke the last time that Vandevender was 23 

slated to close and I told the then-Board that Vandy is 24 
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the place I choose to be.  I have been on the RIF and 1 

transfer list in 2008 and Vandy is where I landed 2 

because Vandy is where I wanted to be.  I had my choice 3 

of where to go.  I'm still here because of the 4 

difference that Vandy makes and the community and the 5 

students and then the families.  It is truly a family 6 

atmosphere that I've never experienced before. 7 

     And the successes that Vandy has had are many.  8 

We have students who are now working for Boeing.  We 9 

have students who are now working for Homeland Security.  10 

We have successful students who are extending the Vandy 11 

legacy beyond West Virginia.  And it is important for 12 

you to recognize that and know that Vandy is exceptional 13 

in many ways and its students that leave from here are 14 

also exceptional in many ways.   15 

Thank you.  16 

  MR. RABER:  Our next speaker is Wendy George 17 

followed by Marie Krinock. 18 

  MS. GEORGE:  Hello.  My name's Wendy George, 19 

W-e-n-d-y -- G-e-o-r-g-e.  Mine is kind of a little bit 20 

different.  I'm a property owner right to the side over 21 

here and if the school does get demolished do they know 22 

the layout of the school or where it's going to be or if 23 

they're going to fix the roads out here where it floods 24 
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every time it rains or like the sewer systems and if 1 

they're going to demolish Lincoln besides this school if 2 

it's going to be like a super school like four stories 3 

or do they have any idea yet about that kind of stuff?  4 

And -- 5 

  MR. RABER:   Would you like that answered 6 

right now or would you like to continue? 7 

  MS. GEORGE:  It's just pretty much -- that's 8 

all I have. 9 

  MR. RABER:  Okay.  Madame Superintendent. 10 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  Sure.  The current plan if 11 

Vandevender is closed -- is that Vandevender and Lincoln 12 

both would be demolished and the new North Parkersburg 13 

Elementary School would be located here.  It would not 14 

be four stories.  No, it would be probably a two-story 15 

building. 16 

  MS. GEORGE:  Or if they know where the parking 17 

lot will be or if it's going to be set in the middle if 18 

they do demolish it? 19 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  The thought is it would be more 20 

towards where the Lincoln Elementary School is now so 21 

it'd be back off of the street. 22 

  MS. GEORGE:  Okay.  And do they know if 23 

they're going to buy up any other property to expand out 24 
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the school or any of the houses? 1 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  We are not.  We are able to 2 

build that school with the property that we currently 3 

have. 4 

  MS. GEORGE:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.  5 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   6 

Our final speaker is Marie Krinock. 7 

  MS. KRINOCK:  My name is Marie, M-a-r-i-e -- 8 

K-r-i-n-o-c-k.  First of all, I thought that with the 9 

zero tolerance bullying policy we wouldn't have bullying 10 

anymore in our schools. 11 

  But there's a reason that student enrollment 12 

is down in public schools and it makes one question why.  13 

But my biggest concern is there's been a whole lot of 14 

spending here at the school recently.  There's been a 15 

new roof put on that was almost a million dollars.   16 

There was a new ventilation system put in.  A new 17 

cafeteria was installed over the summer.  A new speaker 18 

system was installed for $10,000.  And it doesn't seem 19 

like you guys are too concerned with the funding and 20 

spending.  With that being said that's coming back onto 21 

the taxpayer. 22 

  Now my first question is:  Is there an 23 

oversight committee where the public will be able to go 24 
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and to see what type of spending is happening on these 1 

projects that are going disastrously wrong?   2 

  MR. RABER:  Madam Superintendent. 3 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  Sure.  That's at the Board of 4 

Education meetings that we have on Tuesdays. 5 

  MS. KRINOCK:  Okay.  So is it posted anywhere 6 

that the public can go look and see what is being spent 7 

on what and being listed out so we can see that in black 8 

and white? 9 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  We have it in black and white 10 

and you are welcome to do a Freedom of Information Act 11 

on. 12 

  MS. KRINOCK:  Oh. 13 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  You could do that.  We have 14 

that because the Board does approve the finances every 15 

two weeks. 16 

  MS. KRINOCK:  Okay.  So we have to do a 17 

Freedom of Information Act and then wait to see if we 18 

will get any answers back? 19 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  Yeah, if you look at the Board 20 

agenda there is a line item each time. 21 

  MS. KRINOCK:  Uh-huh (yes).  22 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  But the itemized pieces are not 23 

public posted with the Board meeting agenda. 24 
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  MS. KRINOCK:  Okay.  So once construction 1 

begins and demolition begins where will we be able to 2 

see the prices for all of that that is happening, any 3 

issues that is run into that was maybe not planned out 4 

well since it's the same company that's doing all the 5 

architectural design in our area and these projects are 6 

disasters.  So where do we get to see the money that's 7 

being spent over the amount that's actually budgeted? 8 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  At this point we just did a 9 

presentation a couple weeks ago with a PowerPoint where 10 

that was -- whether right now it's a projection what the 11 

overages are.  Some of these secure entrances already 12 

were known but we've been doing facility updates 13 

monthly. 14 

  MS. KRINOCK:  Okay.  Also I would like to ask 15 

with Madison School just being three blocks up the road 16 

and this is going to be a new elementary center I'm 17 

assuming that Madison's going to stay open.  My biggest 18 

concern is we have a community here and I am also a 19 

property owner and we use this out here quite a bit.   20 

     So when this elementary school comes in are 21 

the grounds going to be left open for the community to 22 

enjoy as well or are they going to be locked up and shut 23 

down like the ones at Madison are? 24 
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  SUPT. WILLIS:  I don't think the grounds at 1 

Madison are locked.   2 

  MS. KRINOCK:  Yes, you cannot -- you cannot 3 

walk up there.  You can't walk track -- you can't walk 4 

the track.  And we have a lot of people in our community 5 

that come out and walk on the track and as a public we 6 

interact with one another and lots of strong community 7 

out there.  So is that going to be taken away? 8 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  I don't have a plan to take it 9 

away at this point.  It's going to be a field that I'm 10 

hoping could be used because with the expansion of 11 

Madison we might have to encroach on the current field 12 

that's there at that elementary school.  There's a six-13 

classroom addition in the bond to go onto Madison.  So 14 

this would be a place that, with the Ramblers, I know I 15 

see them practice there all the time, utilize that. 16 

  MS. KRINOCK:  Oh, the Ramblers do but after 17 

that's done and over with it's locked and the public 18 

can't use those grounds.  And these schools are public 19 

funded so that's the question that if it's publicly 20 

funded, then should the grounds not be available to the 21 

public, who's funding them, get to use them? 22 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  I can say as a former principal 23 

it depends. 24 
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  MS. KRINOCK:  Uh-huh (yes). 1 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  There was a situation at a 2 

school where I was the principal where we found drug 3 

needles in the mulch -- 4 

  MS. KRINOCK:  Right. 5 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  -- and some things that should 6 

not be there for the pre-K kids.  So for the students' 7 

safety we did have to lock and that particular school 8 

had a community playground so sometimes it's -- those 9 

things happen and then there's a result. 10 

  MS. KRINOCK:  Okay.  Right.  So probably then 11 

in our area.   12 

     And my last question is as per News and 13 

Sentinel, Justin, have you paid your real estate taxes 14 

yet? 15 

  MR. RABER:  I will call that comment out of 16 

order.  That is not pending before this Board. 17 

  That is our final speaker this evening.  There 18 

will be no further speakers.  We are adjourned.  19 

----- 20 

(The proceedings were concluded at 6:25 p.m.) 21 

----- 22 
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 24 
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THE STATE OF   : 

WEST VIRGINIA  : 
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  I, NANCY S. JARRELL, CCR, Certified Court 

Reporter and Notary Public within and for the State of West 

Virginia, duly commissioned and qualified, do hereby 

certify that the hearing above was by me reduced to text 

and recorded by Stenomask; afterwards reduced to 

transcription under my direction and control; that the 

foregoing is a true and correct transcription of the 

testimony given by said witness. 

 

  I do further certify that this testimony was 

taken at the time and place in the foregoing caption 

specified, and was completed without adjournment.   

 

  I do further certify that I am not a relative, 

counsel or attorney of either party, or otherwise 

interested in the event of this action. 

 

   

  IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 

and affixed my seal of office at Parkersburg, West 

Virginia, on the 3rd day of November 2024. 

 

 

                       ______/s/Nancy S. Jarrell, CCR_______      
       Nancy S. Jarrell, CCR 

           Notary Public  

 

 

 

  My commission expires December 26, 2025. 

 

 



Thursday, October 24, 2024
Special Meeting - Jackson Middle School Hearing

7:30 p.m.
Jackson Middle School
1601 34th Street
Vienna, WV 26105

1. Meeting Procedure
Subject : A. School Closure Hearing Procedure

Meeting : Oct 24, 2024 - Special Meeting - Jackson Middle 
School Hearing

Category : 1. Meeting Procedure

Access : Public

Type : Procedural

Public Content
The Wood County Board of Education will hold three (3) public hearings on the Superintendents 
recommendation to close VanDevender Middle School at the end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to 
merge it into Jackson Middle School and Hamilton Middle School at that time, as follow:

LOCATION: VanDevender Middle School, 918 31st Street, Parkersburg, WV
DATE AND TIME: October 21, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.
Sign in to speak between 5:30 p.m. and 6:00 p.m.

LOCATION: Hamilton Middle School, 3501 Cadillac Drive, Parkersburg, WV
DATE AND TIME: October 24, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.
Sign in to speak between 5:30 p.m. and 6:00 p.m.

LOCATION: Jackson Middle School, 1601 34th Street, Vienna, WV
DATE AND TIME: October 24, 2024, at 7:30 p.m.
Sign in to speak between 7:00 p.m. and 7:30 p.m.

If, at the time a hearing is called to order, the Board determines that the location is of insufficient size to 
accommodate all who desire to attend, the hearing will be recessed and moved to a new location of 
sufficient size to accommodate all those who desire to attend. If that happens, the new meeting location 
will be posted at the original meeting location.

If a public hearing is not completed by 11:00 p.m., it will be recessed, to be continued on a date and at a 
time designated and announced by the Board just prior to the hearing recess, to be continued day-to-day 
until concluded. The public hearings, as well as any reconvened session of the public hearings, shall end 
at the conclusion of each hearings business or at 11:00 p.m., whichever occurs earlier.

ALTERNATE DATES AND TIMES

If, due to inclement weather or other cause, any hearing cannot be held on the scheduled date, the 
hearing or meeting will be held at the same location and time as originally scheduled, but on these dates 
and times:

for the hearing at VanDevender Middle School, on October 25, 2024, beginning at6:00 p.m.



for the hearing at Hamilton Middle School, on October 29, 2024, beginning at 6:00 p.m.
for the hearing at Jackson Middle School, on October 29, 2024, beginning at 7:30 p.m.

If for any reason a hearing cannot be conducted on the alternate date or time, the Board will determine a 
date or time.

HEARING PROCEDURES

For a period of 30 minutes prior to the commencement of a public hearing, persons may and are 
encouraged to register at the hearing location for the purpose of making statements, offering testimony, 
and questioning school officials concerning the proposals. Each hearing will begin with an oral summary 
by a representative of Wood County Schools of the reasons and supporting data in connection with the 
proposed action by the Board. Speakers will then be recognized in the order in which they registered. 
Each speaker shall be limited to five (5) minutes unless, in accordance with Board Policy 1000, the 
President reduces that time limit to provide all persons wishing to speak the opportunity to do so.

SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN MATERIAL

The Board will consider any written material submitted by members of the public concerning the 
proposals if the material, with six (6) copies, is submitted to and received by the Office of the 
Superintendent of Schools at 1210 13th Street, Parkersburg, West Virginia, before noon on
October 17, 2024, including any findings and recommendations from the local school improvement 
councils representing VanDevender, Hamilton and Jackson Middle Schools.

REASONS AND SUPPORTING DATA

Until the date of the first hearing, written reasons for the Superintendents recommendations in the form of 
an Impact Statement and Supporting Data are available for public inspection in the Office of the 
Superintendent of Schools at 1210 13th Street, Parkersburg, West Virginia, on weekdays between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.

FINAL ACTION

The Board of Education will take formal action on the Superintendents proposal to close VanDevender 
Middle School at the end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to merge it into Jackson Middle School and 
Hamilton Middle School, at its meeting at Jackson Middle School,1601 34th Street, Vienna, West 
Virginia, on October 24, 2024, beginning at 8:30 p.m. If, due to inclement weather or other cause, the 
Board meeting cannot be held on the scheduled date, the meeting will be held at the same location and 
time as originally scheduled, but on October 29, 2024.

Christie M. Willis,
Superintendent
Wood County Board of Education
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Subject : B. Delegation and Public Comment
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Access : Public

Type : Information

Public Content

4. Closing of Meeting
Subject : A. Adjournment
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Wood County Board of Education 

Special Meeting – Jackson Middle School Hearing 

Thursday, October 24, 2024 

Jackson Middle School and Via YouTube 

7:30 pm 

Minutes 

      1.  Meeting Procedure 

 

           A.  School Closure Hearing Procedure 

 

                 President Raber reviewed the rules established for the hearing.  He explained  

                 that the Summary of the Proposed Action would be presented by the Administration, 

                 which would be Superintendent Willis. 

 

2.   Opening of Meeting 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Wood County Board of Education met on Thursday, October 24, 2024 at Jackson 

Middle School, 1601 34th Street, Vienna, WV.  President Raber called the meeting to 

order at 7:30 pm. 

 

            B.  Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

                  A moment of silence was held, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance, led by  

                  Rick Olcott. 

 

 C.  Roll Call 

 

      The following Board members were present:  Justin Raber, Rick Olcott, Ron Tice,  

      and Judy Johnson.  Sarah Townsend was absent. 

 

       A quorum was established. 

 

      3.  Jackson Middle School Hearing           
 

 A.  Summary of Proposed Action Presented by Administration 

 

Over the last decade, the Wood County Board of Education has had a decline in  

student enrollment. Wood County has had a 1,929 decrease in student population 

from 2014 through 2024.The proposal before us is to consolidate services. The 

specific proposal is to merge VanDevender Middle School into the current Hamilton 

Middle School and Jackson Middle School resulting in the closure of VanDevender 

Middle School. 

 

      During the past 10 years, VanDevender Middle School’s height of enrollment was       

      the 2017-2018 school year at 415 students. The enrollment of VanDevender Middle  

      School as of August 9, 2024, was 248 students. The program utilization for   

      VanDevender Middle School has a capacity for 728 students; therefore, with an  

      enrollment of 248 students, the program utilization of the facility is 34.1%.  The  

      desirable program utilization for a school is 85%. 

 

      Over the past 10 years, Hamilton Middle School’s height of enrollment was the 2015  

      – 2016 school year at 555 students. As of August 9, 2024, the enrollment of Hamilton  

      Middle School was 458 students. The program utilization for Hamilton Middle  

      School has a capacity for 784 students therefore the current program utilization of the  

      facility is 54.1%. Approximately 55% of VanDevender Middle School students will  

      attend Hamilton Middle School. The combined enrollment of VanDevender Middle   

      School merged with Hamilton Middle School is projected to be 580 students for the  

      2025-2026 school year with a program utilization of 74%. 

 

 

 

 



   

 

      Over the past 10 years, Jackson Middle Schools’ height of enrollment was during the     

      2021 –2022 school year at 519 students. As of August 9, 2024, the enrollment of  

      Jackson Middle School was 440 students. The program utilization for Jackson Middle  

      School has a capacity for 728 students; therefore, the program utilization is 60.4%.   

      Approximately 45% of VanDevender Middle School students will attend Jackson  

      Middle School. The combined enrollment of VanDevender Middle School merged   

      with Jackson Middle School is projected to be 520 students for the 2025-2026 school  

      year with a program utilization of 71.4%. 

 

      The closure of VanDevender Middle School to merge with Hamilton Middle School    

      and Jackson Middle School will result in a reduction of 4 professional personnel    

      positions and 3.5 service personnel positions.  Hamilton Middle School will be  

      designated a Title I School. 

 

Hamilton Middle School is located 1.3 miles away from VanDevender Middle    

School, if traveling on 32nd Street.  Jackson Middle School is located 3.8 miles away   

from VanDevender Middle School, if traveling on Grand Central Avenue.   

Transportation will be provided and not exceed 45 minutes to either middle school as  

required by Policy 6200.   For extracurricular activities, many students at  

VanDevender walk to practices.  Wood County Schools will provide an activities bus  

to transport students in the evening from Jackson Middle School to a bus stop in the  

vicinity of the current VanDevender Middle School district for students who do not  

have transportation after school hours to attend practices. 

 

      VanDevender Middle School is in fair condition and not compliant with the American   

      Disabilities Act.  Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School are in good  

      condition and ADA compliant. VanDevender Middle School has a secure vestibule.     

      Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School will have a secure vestibule  

      constructed this school year. 

 

      The closure of VanDevender Middle School and merger with Hamilton Middle   

      School and Jackson Middle School has the potential to save the Board of Education  

      $1,262,139.52 (one million, two hundred sixty-two thousand, one hundred thirty-nine  

      dollars and fifty-two cents) annually.  This cost savings is needed as a result of  

      declining enrollment.  Wood County Schools will have less funding next year as our  

      most recent full-time equivalency enrollment number has dropped to 10,991, which is  

      the number used in the state funding formula.   This is a 176 FTE decline from what  

      Wood County Schools was funded for this current school year. 

 

            B.  Delegation and Public Comment       
 

                  The following audience members spoke and asked questions/shared concerns 

                  regarding the closure  and merger of VanDevender Middle School into Jackson 

                  Middle School and Hamilton Middle School: 
 

 Kayla Loyd 

 Jeff Kisner 

 Jamee Dalrymple 

 

 

       4.  Closing of Meeting 

 

            A.  Adjournment             

 

       President Raber adjourned the meeting at 7:47 pm. 
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----- 1 

PROCEEDINGS 2 

----- 3 

  MR. RABER:  Good evening.  It is now 7:30 p.m. 4 

and I call the special meeting of the Wood County Board 5 

of Education to order.   6 

     Please join me in a moment of silence followed 7 

by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Olcott.   8 

  (Moment of silence) 9 

    MR. RABER:  Thank you.  10 

  (Pledge of Allegiance) 11 

  MR. RABER:  Good evening.  I will note that 12 

four of the five members are present.  Ms. Townsend is 13 

not with us this evening.  14 

  Tonight we are here for the Jackson Middle 15 

School hearing in regards to the proposed consolidation 16 

and closure of Vandy Middle School and the merger into 17 

Jackson Middle School and Hamilton Middle School.   18 

          This evening we will use the same procedure 19 

that we have throughout.  The administration by 20 

Superintendent Willis will present a summary of the 21 

proposed action and then that will be followed by 22 

delegation and public comments. 23 

  We ask that all public -- all delegations and 24 
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public comments, please have your comments be germane to 1 

the school closure hearing and process.  On my left you 2 

will have the timer of five minutes.  Each speaker will 3 

be given five minutes to address the Board.  We will 4 

start and stop the timer if the speaker asks any 5 

questions of the administration. 6 

      This process is a little different than 7 

regular Board meetings where, as part of the school 8 

closure hearing process, the speakers are permitted to 9 

ask the administration questions and the administration 10 

will answer those questions as part of this process.  We 11 

will stop the time when the administration is speaking 12 

so that it does not take away from your five minutes. 13 

  Madam Superintendent. 14 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  Over the last decade Wood 15 

County Schools had a decline in student enrollment.  16 

Wood County has had a 1,929 decrease in student 17 

population from 2014 through 2024.  The proposal before 18 

us is to consolidate services.  The specific proposal is 19 

to merge Vandevender Middle School into the current 20 

Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School 21 

resulting in the closure of Vandevender Middle School. 22 

  During the past ten years Vandevender Middle 23 

School's height of enrollment was the 2017-2018 school 24 
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year at 415 students.  The enrollment of Vandevender 1 

Middle School as of August 9th, 2024 was 248 students.  2 

The program utilization for Vandevender Middle School 3 

has a capacity for 728 students.  Therefore with an 4 

enrollment of 248 students, the program utilization of 5 

the facility is 34.1 percent.  The desirable program 6 

utilization for a school is 85 percent. 7 

  Over the past ten years Hamilton Middle 8 

School's height of enrollment was the 2015-2016 school 9 

year at 555 students.  As of August 9th, 2024 the 10 

enrollment of Hamilton Middle School was 458 students.  11 

The program utilization for Hamilton Middle School has a 12 

capacity for 784 students.  Therefore the current 13 

program utilization of the facility is 54.1 percent. 14 

  Approximately 55 percent of Vandevender Middle 15 

School students will attend Hamilton Middle School.  The 16 

combined enrollment of Vandevender Middle School merged 17 

with Hamilton Middle School is projected to be 580 18 

students for the 2025-2026 school year with a program 19 

utilization rate of 74 percent. 20 

  Over the past ten years Jackson Middle 21 

School's height of enrollment was during the 2021-2022 22 

school year at 519 students.  As of August 9th, 2024 the 23 

enrollment of Jackson Middle School was 440 students.  24 
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The program utilization rate for Jackson Middle School 1 

has a capacity for 728 students.  Therefore the program 2 

utilization is 60.4 percent. 3 

  Approximately 45 percent of Vandevender Middle 4 

School students will attend Jackson Middle School.  The 5 

combined enrollment of Vandevender Middle School merged 6 

with Jackson Middle School is projected to be 520 7 

students for the 2025-2026 school year with a program 8 

utilization rate of 71.4 percent. 9 

  The closure of Vandevender Middle School to 10 

merge with Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle 11 

School will result in a reduction of four professional 12 

personnel positions and three and a half (3.5) service 13 

personnel positions.  Hamilton Middle School will be 14 

designated a Title I school.   15 

  Hamilton Middle School is located 1.3 miles 16 

away from Vandevender Middle School if traveling on 32nd 17 

Street.  Jackson Middle School is located 3.8 miles away 18 

from Vandevender Middle School if traveling on Grand 19 

Central Avenue.  Transportation will be provided and not 20 

exceed 45 minutes to either middle school as required by 21 

Policy 6200. 22 

  For extracurricular activities many students 23 

at Vandevender walk to practices.  Wood County Schools 24 
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would provide an activities bus to transport students in 1 

the evening from Jackson Middle School to a bus stop in 2 

the vicinity of the current Vandevender Middle School 3 

district for students who do not have transportation 4 

after school hours to attend practices. 5 

  Vandevender Middle School is in fair condition 6 

and not compliant with the American Disabilities Act.  7 

Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School are in 8 

good condition and ADA compliant.  Vandevender Middle 9 

School has a secure vestibule.  Hamilton Middle School 10 

and Jackson Middle School will have a secure vestibule 11 

constructed this school year. 12 

  The closure of Vandevender Middle School and 13 

merger with Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle 14 

School has the potential to save the Board of Education 15 

one million, two hundred sixty-two thousand dollars -- 16 

sorry, repeat that -- one million, two hundred sixty-two 17 

thousand, one hundred thirty-nine dollars and fifty-two 18 

cents ($1,262,139.52) annually.  This cost savings is 19 

needed as a result of declining enrollment. 20 

      Wood County Schools will have less funding 21 

next year as our most recent full-time equivalency 22 

enrollment number has dropped to 10,991, which is the 23 

number used in the state funding formula.  This is a 176 24 
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full-time equivalency decline from what Wood County 1 

Schools was funded for this current school year. 2 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   3 

      Are there any questions for the 4 

Superintendent?   5 

  (No response) 6 

  MR. RABER:  Hearing none we will go to public 7 

comment and delegations.  We do have three speakers this 8 

evening.  Each speaker will be afforded five minutes to 9 

address the Board.  Our first speaker is Kayla Loyd.  10 

And when you come up please state your name and spell 11 

your last name for the court reporter. 12 

  MS. LOYD:  Hello.  It's Kayla, K-a-y-l-a, 13 

Lloyd, L-o-y-d.  I've been to all the meetings so I 14 

don't have a whole bunch of questions.  I was just kind 15 

of curious.  Do you guys know if Jackson currently has a 16 

pantry or a needs room? 17 

  MR. RABER:  Madam Superintendent. 18 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  Mr. Kisner is in the audience 19 

and I'm going to ask Mr. Kisner if he can answer that 20 

question for me. 21 

  MR. KISNER:  Yes, ma'am. 22 

  MR. RABER:  Mr. Kisner, if you could come up 23 

to the microphone so that way you can be heard on the 24 
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Live Stream. 1 

  MR. KISNER:  It's a great question.  Yes, 2 

ma'am, we do, we do currently have a pantry.  Some of 3 

our local faith -- faith-based -- yeah, I haven't said 4 

that right yet -- organizations do help us.  Every week 5 

they help support that.  We also have a clothes closet 6 

here at Jackson, yes, ma'am. 7 

  MS. LOYD:  Okay.  That's just something that's 8 

very heavily utilized at Vandevender Middle School and I 9 

just don’t want our kids to go without.  Sorry, I love 10 

these kids.   11 

  I also wanted to know -- I know you talked 12 

about mental health concerns a little bit.  And I was 13 

reading the documents and there's -- you're going to -- 14 

you're planning to have like counselors split 50-50.  15 

How do you think -- how do you think that the -- or our 16 

kids that went to Jackson or Hamilton school will be 17 

overlooked?  I'm just really concerned about that.  I 18 

wonder if it's to, you know, not just be a number. 19 

  MR. RABER:  Madam Superintendent. 20 

  MS. WILLIS:  Yes, there's already a counselor 21 

at Jackson but unfortunately I think that counselor is 22 

moving. 23 

  MS. LOYD:  Yeah. 24 
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  SUPT. WILLIS:  Hamilton currently doesn't have 1 

a counselor though we're fortunate Cathy Grewe is 2 

retiring. 3 

  MS. LOYD:  Yeah. 4 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  She's going to help us at 5 

Hamilton.  So hopefully we can find two full-time 6 

counselors for the middle schools and then we're adding 7 

a half to split between the two to provide some extra 8 

services in this transition because we do know that, you 9 

know, the students at Vandy -- we want to make sure that 10 

they're taken care of. 11 

  MS. LOYD:  Yeah.  And that's pretty much all I 12 

had.  I was just kind of curious about mainly the pantry 13 

because like I said it's utilized.  Our kids are excited 14 

just to get hand-me-downs because a lot of them can't 15 

afford stuff.  So I was just really concerned about that 16 

so thank you. 17 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   18 

     And just so that's clear, Madame 19 

Superintendent, now the intention is to have both 20 

schools a full-time counselor that is at school every 21 

day; in addition to that is a half-time counselor at 22 

each school? 23 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  That's correct.  24 



 

 

Nancy S. Jarrell, CCR 

304-615-8656 

11 

  MR. RABER:  Okay.  Thank you.   1 

     Our next speaker is Jeff Kisner. 2 

  MR. KISNER:  Good evening.  My name is Jeff 3 

Kisner, K-i-s-n-e-r.  I am the principal here at Jackson 4 

Middle School.  I really don’t have too many questions 5 

this evening.  I did just want to make a couple comments 6 

to the group and I greatly appreciate the audience and 7 

the Board being here today. 8 

  First of all, you know, this a tough time for 9 

everyone here as far as in this room and all community 10 

members because of one thing.  And that is pride.  You 11 

know, I think pride is something that runs very deep in 12 

our community and we have pride in family, we have pride 13 

in our school, we have pride in our community.  And, you 14 

know, I am very proud to be the administrator here at 15 

Jackson Middle School. 16 

      I'm very proud to have the staff that we have 17 

that work so hard day in and day out.  Does not matter 18 

what their role is, whether they're a teacher, a nurse, 19 

an administrator, a custodian or a cook there.  Many of 20 

them have great feelings for the students that we see.  21 

And just like -- I'm sorry, I think it was Ms. Lauers 22 

[sic] said they love the kids that are here and they 23 

want to here day in and day out.  Don’t get me wrong.  24 
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Everybody has days.  But I think that pride in these 1 

times and the love of the kids that they work with is 2 

very special. 3 

  I just want to assure everyone that the 4 

dedication of the individuals here at Jackson Middle 5 

School, just as, I'm sure the dedication of those 6 

individuals at Hamilton as well as Vandevender, we are 7 

about students.  And I have no doubt that the staff that 8 

we have, the staff that we are going to be bringing on 9 

are going to have the love of -- it does not matter 10 

where you live in this county but, you know, we all have 11 

those designations.   12 

  I grew up in a very rural area.  You talk 13 

about 3.8 miles.  I definitely did that on a bus every 14 

day for sure in Pleasants County and traveling to and 15 

from school.  I probably had just as well of a 16 

relationship with that bus driver as I did anyone else 17 

in that time. 18 

  But I want -- do want to just say there's no 19 

doubt fear plays a factor.  It really does.  Our kids 20 

come to school daily and some have fears right now.  And 21 

mental health is a concern.  Fading (phonetic) of 22 

students is a concern.  They're a concern here at 23 

Jackson.  I know they're a concern everywhere in this 24 
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county and I believe we want to continue that it does 1 

not matter who walks through those doors we're here to 2 

educate and to provide for them and to try to love them 3 

to the best of our ability and just be there for them. 4 

  My hope in all of this is in -- with the 5 

documents that I've read that the Board is looking at 6 

providing support and continuing that end of things.  7 

You know, right now we have three science teachers in 8 

our building.  According to that document we're going to 9 

now have six and that's a huge relief to my staff.  But 10 

it should also be a huge relief to our parents.  It 11 

doesn't matter where you're coming from that the 12 

education, the love, the support that you're going to 13 

get should be equal no matter where we're at.  Doesn't 14 

matter the building.  I believe in the professionalism 15 

of the staff here and those to come as well.  So thank 16 

you. 17 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   18 

          Our final speaker this evening is Jamee 19 

Dalrymple.  Did I get it right this time? 20 

  MS. DALRYMPLE:  Yes.  My name is Jamee 21 

Dalrymple, D-a-l-r-y-m-p-l-e.  I'm here again to address 22 

mainly the community that is Jackson Middle School. 23 

  I'm not here to plead for Vandy to remain open 24 
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because that decision for closure has already been 1 

decided upon.  But I am here to plead for our students, 2 

the current students that we have already, and the 3 

future students that would be attending Vandevender 4 

Middle. 5 

  Our school, we have a very close community as 6 

many schools do.  We are very involved in our students' 7 

lives and we are also involved with their families.  8 

Losing Vandy is, and it will be, a huge blow to our 9 

community in Wood County.  Our kids and their families 10 

do feel like they don't belong.  They feel like outcasts 11 

many times. 12 

  Their socio-economic situation is different 13 

than those that live here in Vienna that do attend and 14 

contribute to Jackson Middle School and the community. 15 

  So we at Vandy are very concerned four our 16 

students and for their family.  We're just just asking 17 

that everyone, whether it be at Hamilton or Jackson that 18 

you welcome and embrace our community.  We do have 19 

wonderful kids and we have wonderful families. 20 

  I do know that no matter where our kids go 21 

they will be bringing Vandy pride to your school and 22 

bringing along with them Vandy traditions.  So please 23 

don't let any kind of prejudices shadow this new 24 
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adventure and juncture with Vandy. 1 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   2 

     At this time there being no further speakers 3 

for the special meeting, the hearing at Jackson Middle 4 

School, we are adjourned at 7:47 p.m. and our next 5 

meeting will begin promptly at 8:30 p.m. 6 

----- 7 

(The proceedings were concluded at 7:47 p.m.) 8 

----- 9 
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THE STATE OF   : 

WEST VIRGINIA  : 

    : SS:   C E R T I F I C A T E 

COUNTY OF WOOD  : 

 

  I, NANCY S. JARRELL, CCR, Certified Court 

Reporter and Notary Public within and for the State of West 

Virginia, duly commissioned and qualified, do hereby 

certify that the hearing above was by me reduced to text 

and recorded by Stenomask; afterwards reduced to 

transcription under my direction and control; that the 

foregoing is a true and correct transcription of the 

testimony given by said witness. 

 

  I do further certify that this testimony was 

taken at the time and place in the foregoing caption 

specified, and was completed without adjournment.   

 

  I do further certify that I am not a relative, 

counsel or attorney of either party, or otherwise 

interested in the event of this action. 

 

   

  IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 

and affixed my seal of office at Parkersburg, West 

Virginia, on the 3rd day of November 2024. 

 

 

                       ______/s/Nancy S. Jarrell, CCR_______      
       Nancy S. Jarrell, CCR 

           Notary Public  

 

 

 

  My commission expires December 26, 2025. 

 

 



Thursday, October 24, 2024
Special Meeting - Hamilton Middle School Hearing

6:00 p.m.
Hamilton Middle School
3501 Cadillac Drive
Parkersburg, WV 26104

1. Meeting Procedure
Subject : A. School Closure Hearing Procedure

Meeting : Oct 24, 2024 - Special Meeting - Hamilton Middle 
School Hearing

Category : 1. Meeting Procedure

Access : Public

Type : Procedural

Public Content
The Wood County Board of Education will hold three (3) public hearings on the Superintendents 
recommendation to close VanDevender Middle School at the end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to 
merge it into Jackson Middle School and Hamilton Middle School at that time, as follow:

LOCATION: VanDevender Middle School, 918 31st Street, Parkersburg, WV
DATE AND TIME: October 21, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.
Sign in to speak between 5:30 p.m. and 6:00 p.m.

LOCATION: Hamilton Middle School, 3501 Cadillac Drive, Parkersburg, WV
DATE AND TIME: October 24, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.
Sign in to speak between 5:30 p.m. and 6:00 p.m.

LOCATION: Jackson Middle School, 1601 34th Street, Vienna, WV
DATE AND TIME: October 24, 2024, at 7:30 p.m.
Sign in to speak between 7:00 p.m. and 7:30 p.m.

If, at the time a hearing is called to order, the Board determines that the location is of insufficient size to 
accommodate all who desire to attend, the hearing will be recessed and moved to a new location of 
sufficient size to accommodate all those who desire to attend. If that happens, the new meeting location 
will be posted at the original meeting location.

If a public hearing is not completed by 11:00 p.m., it will be recessed, to be continued on a date and at a 
time designated and announced by the Board just prior to the hearing recess, to be continued day-to-day 
until concluded. The public hearings, as well as any reconvened session of the public hearings, shall end 
at the conclusion of each hearings business or at 11:00 p.m., whichever occurs earlier.

ALTERNATE DATES AND TIMES

If, due to inclement weather or other cause, any hearing cannot be held on the scheduled date, the 
hearing or meeting will be held at the same location and time as originally scheduled, but on these dates 
and times:

for the hearing at VanDevender Middle School, on October 25, 2024, beginning at6:00 p.m.



for the hearing at Hamilton Middle School, on October 29, 2024, beginning at 6:00 p.m.
for the hearing at Jackson Middle School, on October 29, 2024, beginning at 7:30 p.m.

If for any reason a hearing cannot be conducted on the alternate date or time, the Board will determine a 
date or time.

HEARING PROCEDURES

For a period of 30 minutes prior to the commencement of a public hearing, persons may and are 
encouraged to register at the hearing location for the purpose of making statements, offering testimony, 
and questioning school officials concerning the proposals. Each hearing will begin with an oral summary 
by a representative of Wood County Schools of the reasons and supporting data in connection with the 
proposed action by the Board. Speakers will then be recognized in the order in which they registered. 
Each speaker shall be limited to five (5) minutes unless, in accordance with Board Policy 1000, the 
President reduces that time limit to provide all persons wishing to speak the opportunity to do so.

SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN MATERIAL

The Board will consider any written material submitted by members of the public concerning the 
proposals if the material, with six (6) copies, is submitted to and received by the Office of the 
Superintendent of Schools at 1210 13th Street, Parkersburg, West Virginia, before noon on
October 17, 2024, including any findings and recommendations from the local school improvement 
councils representing VanDevender, Hamilton and Jackson Middle Schools.

REASONS AND SUPPORTING DATA

Until the date of the first hearing, written reasons for the Superintendents recommendations in the form of 
an Impact Statement and Supporting Data are available for public inspection in the Office of the 
Superintendent of Schools at 1210 13th Street, Parkersburg, West Virginia, on weekdays between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.

FINAL ACTION

The Board of Education will take formal action on the Superintendents proposal to close VanDevender 
Middle School at the end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to merge it into Jackson Middle School and 
Hamilton Middle School, at its meeting at Jackson Middle School,1601 34th Street, Vienna, West 
Virginia, on October 24, 2024, beginning at 8:30 p.m. If, due to inclement weather or other cause, the 
Board meeting cannot be held on the scheduled date, the meeting will be held at the same location and 
time as originally scheduled, but on October 29, 2024.

Christie M. Willis,
Superintendent
Wood County Board of Education
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School Hearing
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Administration
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Access : Public

Type : Information

Public Content

Subject : B. Delegation and Public Comment
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Category : 3. Hamilton Middle School Hearing

Access : Public

Type : Information

Public Content

4. Closing of Meeting
Subject : A. Adjournment



Meeting : Oct 24, 2024 - Special Meeting - Hamilton Middle 
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Wood County Board of Education 

Special Meeting – Hamilton Middle School Hearing 

Thursday, October 24, 2024 

Hamilton Middle School and Via YouTube 

6:00 pm 

Minutes 

 

      1.  Meeting Procedure 

 

           A.  School Closure Hearing Procedure 

 

                 President Raber reviewed the rules established for the hearing.  He explained  

                 that the Summary of the Proposed Action would be presented by the Administration, 

                 which would be Superintendent Willis. 

 

2.   Opening of Meeting 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Wood County Board of Education met on Thursday, October 24, 2024 at 

Hamilton Middle School, 3501 Cadillac Drive, Parkersburg, WV.  President Raber 

called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 

            B.  Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

                  A moment of silence was held, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance, led by 

                  Ron Tice. 

 

 C.  Roll Call 

 

      The following Board members were present:  Justin Raber, Rick Olcott, Ron Tice,  

      and Judy Johnson.  Sarah Townsend was absent. 

 

       A quorum was established. 

 

      3.  Hamilton Middle School Hearing           
 

 A.  Summary of Proposed Action Presented by Administration        
 

Over the last decade, the Wood County Board of Education has had a decline in  

student enrollment. Wood County has had a 1,929 decrease in student population 

from 2014 through 2024.The proposal before us is to consolidate services. The 

specific proposal is to merge VanDevender Middle School into the current Hamilton 

Middle School and Jackson Middle School resulting in the closure of VanDevender 

Middle School. 

 

      During the past 10 years, VanDevender Middle School’s height of enrollment was       

      the 2017-2018 school year at 415 students. The enrollment of VanDevender Middle  

      School as of August 9, 2024, was 248 students. The program utilization for   

      VanDevender Middle School has a capacity for 728 students; therefore, with an  

      enrollment of 248 students, the program utilization of the facility is 34.1%.  The  

      desirable program utilization for a school is 85%. 

 

      Over the past 10 years, Hamilton Middle School’s height of enrollment was the 2015  

      – 2016 school year at 555 students. As of August 9, 2024, the enrollment of Hamilton  

      Middle School was 458 students. The program utilization for Hamilton Middle  

      School has a capacity for 784 students therefore the current program utilization of the  

      facility is 54.1%. Approximately 55% of VanDevender Middle School students will  

      attend Hamilton Middle School. The combined enrollment of VanDevender Middle   

      School merged with Hamilton Middle School is projected to be 580 students for the  

      2025-2026 school year with a program utilization of 74%. 

 

 

 



   

 

      Over the past 10 years, Jackson Middle Schools’ height of enrollment was during the     

      2021 –2022 school year at 519 students. As of August 9, 2024, the enrollment of  

      Jackson Middle School was 440 students. The program utilization for Jackson Middle  

      School has a capacity for 728 students; therefore, the program utilization is 60.4%.   

      Approximately 45% of VanDevender Middle School students will attend Jackson  

      Middle School. The combined enrollment of VanDevender Middle School merged   

      with Jackson Middle School is projected to be 520 students for the 2025-2026 school  

      year with a program utilization of 71.4%. 

 

      The closure of VanDevender Middle School to merge with Hamilton Middle School    

      and Jackson Middle School will result in a reduction of 4 professional personnel    

      positions and 3.5 service personnel positions.  Hamilton Middle School will be  

      designated a Title I School. 

 

Hamilton Middle School is located 1.3 miles away from VanDevender Middle    

School, if traveling on 32nd Street.  Jackson Middle School is located 3.8 miles away   

from VanDevender Middle School, if traveling on Grand Central Avenue.   

Transportation will be provided and not exceed 45 minutes to either middle school as  

required by Policy 6200.   For extracurricular activities, many students at  

VanDevender walk to practices.  Wood County Schools will provide an activities bus  

to transport students in the evening from Jackson Middle School to a bus stop in the  

vicinity of the current VanDevender Middle School district for students who do not  

have transportation after school hours to attend practices. 

 

      VanDevender Middle School is in fair condition and not compliant with the American   

      Disabilities Act.  Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School are in good  

      condition and ADA compliant. VanDevender Middle School has a secure vestibule.     

      Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School will have a secure vestibule  

      constructed this school year. 

 

      The closure of VanDevender Middle School and merger with Hamilton Middle   

      School and Jackson Middle School has the potential to save the Board of Education  

      $1,262,139.52 (one million, two hundred sixty-two thousand, one hundred thirty-nine  

      dollars and fifty-two cents) annually.  This cost savings is needed as a result of  

      declining enrollment.  Wood County Schools will have less funding next year as our  

      most recent full-time equivalency enrollment number has dropped to 10,991, which is  

      the number used in the state funding formula.   This is a 176 FTE decline from what  

      Wood County Schools was funded for this current school year. 

 

            B.  Delegation and Public Comment 

 

                  The following audience members spoke and asked questions/shared concerns 

                  regarding the closure and merger of VanDevender Middle School into Jackson 

                  Middle School and Hamilton Middle School: 
 

 Andi Ervin 

 Jamee Dalrymple 

 Melissa Thompson 

 Aaron Russell 

 

       4.  Closing of Meeting 

 

            A.  Adjournment             

 

       President Raber adjourned the meeting at 6:25 pm. 
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WOOD COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MEMBERS 

 JUSTIN RABER 

 RICK OLCOTT 
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 CHRISTIE WILLIS - WOOD COUNTY SCHOOL  

                       SUPERINTENDENT 
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----- 1 

PROCEEDINGS 2 

----- 3 

  MR. RABER:  Please join me in a moment of 4 

silence followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. 5 

Tice.   6 

  (Moment of silence.) 7 

    MR. RABER:  Thank you.  8 

  (Pledge of Allegiance) 9 

  MR. RABER:  I will note that four of the five 10 

members are present this evening with Ms. Townsend not 11 

in attendance. 12 

  As we move forward with the special meeting 13 

here at Hamilton Middle School we do have the Hamilton 14 

Middle School hearing since as it is a receiving school 15 

in the closing and consolidation of Vandevender Middle 16 

School into Hamilton and Jackson Middle Schools. 17 

 ` This evening we will have a summary of the 18 

proposed action presented by Superintendent Willis on 19 

behalf of the administration.  After the presentation of 20 

the summary we will then move into delegations and 21 

public comment. 22 

      We do have four speakers.  Each speaker will 23 

be permitted five minutes to address the Board.  During 24 
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that time we ask that you keep your comments germane to 1 

the school closure and consolidation as well as, you 2 

will see on your left, is the timer and if you ask a 3 

question of the administration -- our delegation and 4 

public comment's a little bit different during school 5 

closure hearings wherein the speakers can ask questions 6 

and have answers provided by the administration.  If you 7 

ask a question the answer does not count against your 8 

five minutes.  We will pause it and then once you start 9 

speaking we will resume. 10 

  And then as you come up please come to the 11 

podium, state your name and spell your last name for our 12 

court reporter and then speak very clearly so that way 13 

everything can be transcribed this evening. 14 

  Madam Superintendent. 15 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  Over the last decade the Wood 16 

County Board of Education has had a decline in student 17 

enrollment.  Wood County has had a 1,929 student 18 

decrease from 2014 through 2024.  The proposal before us 19 

is to consolidate services.  The specific proposal is to 20 

merge Vandevender Middle School into the current 21 

Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School 22 

resulting in the closure of Vandevender Middle School. 23 

  During the past ten years Vandevender Middle 24 
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School's height of enrollment was the 2017-2018 school 1 

year at 415 students.  The enrollment of Vandevender 2 

Middle School as of August 9th, 2024 was 248 students.  3 

The program utilization for Vandevender Middle School 4 

has a capacity for 728 students.  Therefore an 5 

enrollment of 248 students, the program utilization of 6 

the facility is 34.1 percent.  The desirable program 7 

utilization for a school is 85 percent. 8 

  Over the past ten years Hamilton Middle 9 

School's height of enrollment was the 2015-2016 school 10 

year at 555 students.  As of August 9th, 2024 the 11 

enrollment of Hamilton Middle School was 458 students.  12 

The program utilization for Hamilton Middle School has a 13 

capacity for 784 students.  Therefore the current 14 

program utilization of the facility is 54.1 percent. 15 

  Approximately 55 percent of Vandevender Middle 16 

School students will potentially attend Hamilton Middle 17 

School.  The combined enrollment of Vandevender Middle 18 

School merged with Hamilton Middle School is projected 19 

to be 580 students for the 2025-2026 school year with a 20 

program utilization rate of 74 percent. 21 

  Over the past ten years Jackson Middle 22 

School's height of enrollment was during the 2021-2022 23 

school year at 519 students.  As of August 9th, 2024 the 24 
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enrollment of Jackson Middle School was 440 students.  1 

The program utilization for Jackson Middle School has a 2 

capacity for 728 students.  Therefore the program 3 

utilization is 60.4 percent. 4 

  Approximately 45 percent of Vandevender Middle 5 

School students will attend Jackson Middle School.  The 6 

combined enrollment of the Vandevender Middle School 7 

merged with Jackson Middle School is projected to be 520 8 

students for the 2025-2026 school year with a program 9 

utilization rate of 71.4 percent. 10 

  The closure of Vandevender Middle School to 11 

merge with Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle 12 

School will result in a reduction of four professional 13 

personnel positions and three and a half (3.5) service 14 

personnel positions.  Hamilton Middle School would be 15 

designated a Title I school.   16 

  Hamilton Middle School is located 1.3 miles 17 

away from Vandevender Middle School if traveling on 32nd 18 

Street.  Jackson Middle School is located three point 19 

eight (3.8) miles away from Vandevender Middle School if 20 

traveling on Grand Central Avenue.  Transportation will 21 

be provided and not exceed 45 minutes to either middle 22 

school as required by Policy 6200. 23 

  For extracurricular activities many students 24 
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at Vandevender walk to practices.  Wood County Schools 1 

would provide and activities bus to transport students 2 

in the evening from Jackson Middle School to a bus stop 3 

in the vicinity of the current Vandevender Middle School 4 

district for students who do not have transportation 5 

after school hours to attend practices. 6 

  Vandevender Middle School is in fair condition 7 

and not compliant with the American Disabilities Act.  8 

Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle School are in 9 

good condition and ADA compliant.  Vandevender Middle 10 

School has a secure vestibule.  Hamilton Middle School 11 

and Jackson Middle School will have a secure vestibule 12 

constructed this school year. 13 

  The closure of Vandevender Middle School and 14 

merger with Hamilton Middle School and Jackson Middle 15 

School has the potential to save the Board of Education 16 

$1,262,139.52 (one million, two hundred sixty-two 17 

thousand, one hundred thirty-nine dollars and fifty-two 18 

cents) annually.  This cost savings is needed as a 19 

result of declining enrollment. 20 

      Wood County Schools will have less funding 21 

next year as our most recent full-time equivalency 22 

enrollment rate has dropped to 10,991, which is the 23 

number used in the state aid funding formula.  This is 24 
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176 FTE decline from what Wood County Schools was funded 1 

for this current school year. 2 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   3 

     We will now move into delegations and public 4 

comments.  Our first speaker is Andi Ervin followed by 5 

Jamee Dalrymple.  And Ms. Ervin, if you would spell your 6 

first name as well. 7 

  MS. ERVIN:  Okay.  Hi.  My name is Andi Ervin, 8 

A-n-d-i -- E-r-v-i-n.  And I actually served on the CFE 9 

committee that made the plans for these school closures 10 

so I've seen the numbers and while my heart disagrees my 11 

mind knows that school closure is a financially 12 

responsible step. 13 

  During those meetings I did make my motives 14 

clear.  My motives for being in any part of Wood County 15 

Schools is to do what is best for the students in our 16 

community and not what is best for the Board of 17 

Education or even just one school even if that is the 18 

school that I love. 19 

      My bias for Vandy comes from having three sons 20 

attend as students over the last eight years.  I've been 21 

active on boosters namely being the booster president 22 

for five of those eight years.  I have been on the LSIC 23 

and the PAC Committee.  I briefly worked in the MMI room 24 
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as a long-term sub and I assistant coached cross country 1 

and then was the head coach.  I even -- even though my 2 

kids moved on to -- sorry -- to PHS I am still active at 3 

Vandy.  I am on the PAC meeting.  I go to the PAC 4 

meetings.  I am on LSIC.  I'm the girls' track coach and 5 

I'm still the booster treasurer. 6 

      Vandy has a very big piece of my heart.  And 7 

my main reason for that is the students.  The staff is 8 

amazing and unlike any other but the students in our 9 

school are truly a unique treasure.  Every school has 10 

great kids and every school has children who make poor 11 

choices but the difference at Vandy is the majority of 12 

those kids, both the great and the misguided, find that 13 

the building and those staff members are their only safe 14 

space. 15 

  Part of my duty as a parent and as as someone 16 

who desires to always advocate for every student in our 17 

county is to look at what is best for them over what is 18 

best for the staff or even the Board. 19 

  I'm aware, despite there not being yet a 20 

formal vote, that you will choose to close Vandevender 21 

because financially that is the best option.  However, 22 

it's not the best option for any middle school student 23 

at Hamilton, Jackson or Vandevender either.  The 24 
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challenges of early adolescence, both mental and 1 

physical, are beyond our comprehension most of the time.  2 

It's not like when we were in school. 3 

     Having smaller class sizes was one of the 4 

biggest benefits I saw within my own family at Vandy.  5 

The students were not left behind because staff saw them 6 

where they are and were glad to take the time to help 7 

them individually.  That won't happen in bigger 8 

classrooms. 9 

  The other benefit I saw to smaller class sizes 10 

was for their mental and social health.  Having a class 11 

size less than 25 students allowed stronger bonds to 12 

form between those students rather than a full class 13 

where you can't talk because of the noise level or being 14 

limited to only speaking to the four to five people 15 

around you.  Students both learned academically as well 16 

as socially through conversation with their peers, open 17 

communication in classrooms instead of the teacher 18 

standing at the front room teaching at them. 19 

  After listening to Tuesday's meeting it's also 20 

obvious unfortunately you do not fully understand the 21 

bullying that goes on.  It's not just between students; 22 

it's between staff.  While my sons and I feel our time 23 

at Vandy has taught them many life skills they would 24 
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have never learned elsewhere we have also had to 1 

overcome a lot of negative comments about where they've 2 

come from.  Both students and staff at other schools 3 

have made derogatory comments about how rough our school 4 

is and how bad everyone there is.  If you think our 5 

students aren't going to get bullied for just being a 6 

Vandy kid, you're very wrong.  Staff will also be 7 

bullied by other staff member for being a Vandy staff 8 

member.  Staff and students alike will make sure our 9 

students know that they do not belong in their schools. 10 

  One of the ways I foresee this bullying 11 

continue is through extracurricular school activities.  12 

Most of the students at Vandy walk to practice, games 13 

and events.  Those who plan to attend at Jackson will 14 

not have that option.  If they were all to go to 15 

Hamilton there would be a better chance for them to walk 16 

to and from these events. 17 

      You say it's only three miles to Jackson.  18 

That's not an easy three miles.  It will be a dangerous 19 

three-mile walk on roads or on busy Grand Central 20 

Avenue.  Hamilton would give our students the best 21 

opportunity to walk through neighborhoods most of which 22 

they're already familiar with.  Instead of looking for 23 

their best interest you propose to send 40 percent of 24 
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them to a school that they cannot get to without a bus 1 

or guardian driving them.  They won't be on those teams 2 

and they won't be in those clubs because they won't have 3 

the opportunity to attend the necessary practices and 4 

meetings required. 5 

     You've stated you will provide for buses for 6 

practices.  What happens when practice is from 5:00 to 7 

9:00 and not right after school?  There's a game they 8 

want to attend to cheer on their friends but they're not 9 

on the team.  How do they get there?  Or there's a 10 

school dance that starts at 7:00 and ends at 10:00.  How 11 

are they doing to get there?  Right now they have the 12 

option to walk.  I urge you to reconsider where you are 13 

going to send these students when you close our school.   14 

Thank you.  15 

  (Applause) 16 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   17 

     Our next speaker is Jamee Dalrymple followed 18 

by Aaron Russell.  And, Jaymee, if you'd spell your 19 

first name for us too, please. 20 

  MS. DALRYMPLE:  My name is Jamee, J-a-m-e-e, 21 

and my last name is Dalrymple, D-a-l-r-y-m-p-l-e. 22 

  MR. RABER:  I'm sorry for mispronouncing your 23 

last name. 24 
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  MS. DALRYMPLE:  It's okay.  Wilson was my 1 

maiden.  It was easier. 2 

  So I'm addressing you all as an employee of 3 

Wood County Schools.  I am the school nurse over at 4 

Vandevender Middle.  My concern, obviously we don't want 5 

to see or school closed.  We love it.  I am a Wildcat 6 

alumni and the thought of having our kids come here is a 7 

little exciting because I have a great three years here.      8 

   However, human factors comes into play.  There 9 

is a lot of prejudice and we try to work past prejudices 10 

but they're there.  I had to come up here to the school 11 

last year.  I was meeting with the school nurse here and 12 

I let those staff -- a few staff members know of what 13 

the plans were because Ms. Willis and a few others had 14 

come and talked to us. 15 

  The issue was the staff looked at me and was 16 

disgusted to think that Vandy kids were going to come 17 

here.  And I kind of get it.  When I first got told my 18 

job was going to go to Vandy I was terrified.  I 19 

thought, "I'm going to get stabbed or shot."  That's not 20 

the case. 21 

      The issue that we have is that there is 22 

discrimination.  We have kids that are good.  We have 23 

kids that are bad.  That's going to be in any school in 24 
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any county in any state anywhere in the world.  So our 1 

kids are terrified at the thought of going to Hamilton 2 

or to Jackson.  And why?  Because they know, they sense 3 

the prejudice that is -- that is coming down.  They hear 4 

it from other school teams.  They hear it from other 5 

kids in the county.  I get told this all the time. 6 

  So our concern is for the well-being of our 7 

kids.  We have a lot of mental health issues here in 8 

Wood County as well as any other county.  Everybody in 9 

our school -- teachers, nurse, counselors, communities 10 

in school, our counselor, everybody who works with these 11 

kids to do risk assessments, to make sure that they're 12 

safe -- we know that there's not a counselor full-time 13 

here at Hamilton and that worries us greatly. 14 

  As Andi had mentioned with the bus that's 15 

going to be transporting, that's another cost.  You've 16 

got the maintenance of another bus, you've got the gas, 17 

you've got to get a driver because that's going to put 18 

somebody out later in the day.  How long is that bus 19 

going to run?  How long is that going to happen?  Like 20 

she said, we have kids that want to participate.  If 21 

they're not within walking distance there is no way.  We 22 

can't transport kids. 23 

  So and that's another concern.  We do have a 24 
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lot of parents at Vandy -- and I don't know about the 1 

other schools -- that do not have transportation and 2 

many of them just will not pick up their kids.  And I 3 

can't tell you how many kids I've had sick and look like 4 

they were dying in my office and no one come get them.  5 

We have a county car and so we all take our kids home.  6 

We will get them to the doctor.  We do these things for 7 

them.  Is that going to happen for our kids here that 8 

come to Jackson or to Hamilton?  We kind of feel that 9 

that's probably not going to happen. 10 

  And as she said when it comes to the prejudice 11 

with staff I sense it.  I am not a fancy person.  I 12 

could wear designer threads if I wanted to.  I don’t.  13 

This is who I am.  I'm usually dressed like a bum 14 

because I play with the kids all day.  But I have people 15 

that side-eye me and look me up and down.  I'm a 16 

professional.  I am a registered nurse and I get treated 17 

in a discriminating way. 18 

  What do I -- how is that going to affect our 19 

kids?  Our kids already know and they're terrified 20 

because they know they're not going to be accepted and 21 

they know that they're not going to fit in. 22 

  (Applause) 23 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   24 
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          Our next speaker is Aaron Russell followed by 1 

Melissa Thompson.  State your name and spell your last 2 

name for us. 3 

  MR. RUSSELL:  Sorry.  My name is Aaron 4 

Russell, R-u-s-s-e-l-l. 5 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.  6 

  MR. RUSSELL:  I'm an eighth grade student from 7 

Vandevender Middle School and I first-hand know that -- 8 

(speaker pauses.)  9 

  MR. RABER:   Aaron, would you like a moment? 10 

  MR. RUSSELL:  I don't know.  Yes, yes, please. 11 

  MR. RABER:  You got it.  Come back up here in 12 

a minute and that's -- 13 

  (Applause) 14 

  MR. RABER:  -- because as a student your voice 15 

needs to be heard the most.  So we definitely want you 16 

up here to speak to us and if you need a minute we're A-17 

okay with that.  So we will move forward to Melissa 18 

Thompson. 19 

  MS. THOMPSON:  Good evening.  I'm Melissa 20 

Thompson, T-h-o-m-p-s-o-n.  I am a teacher in Wood 21 

County Schools.  I've been in Wood County Schools since 22 

2011.  I also have a sixth grade son here at Hamilton.   23 

     I'd first of all like to thank you guys for 24 
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the detailed information provided at the beginning 1 

because most of my questions were already answered with 2 

that information.  I was curious about the school 3 

populations and how that was going to impact the new 4 

population sizes with the closure of Vandevender. 5 

  My remaining question would be:  How do we 6 

anticipate class sizes at the two remaining schools to 7 

be impacted?  Are there going to be additional teaching 8 

positions added to the two remaining middle schools or 9 

are classrooms already filled and therefore the students 10 

that are absorbed will just become part of the 11 

classrooms that are already there? 12 

  MR. RABER:  Madam Superintendent. 13 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  I'm very -- I am excited to 14 

share with you -- I'm excited.  All right.  I am excited 15 

to tell you what if you're familiar with middle school 16 

and they do teaming, we're going to put the teams back 17 

at both Jackson and at Hamilton because the student 18 

enrollment will allow us to hire some more teachers.  19 

And let me tell you what we're going to add.  Okay?  20 

  MS. THOMPSON:  Sure. 21 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  And you're talking Hamilton? 22 

  MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.   23 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  Hamilton currently has six 24 
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teachers for English language arts and that six is 1 

what's needed to run teaming.  There's five science 2 

teachers at Hamilton currently.  We will add one.  There 3 

will be six.  There are two social studies teachers 4 

currently at Hamilton.  We are adding four so get to 5 

six.  The two P.E. wellness teachers will remain two.  6 

There will be one choir teacher and we are going to 7 

actually add a second music teacher.  Math teachers at 8 

Hamilton, we have six and they'll remain at six. 9 

  MS. THOMPSON:  All right.  Thank you.   10 

     I'd also like to make a comment just on my 11 

personal experience.  I spent two years teaching at the 12 

STEAM Academy, Wood County Schools, which is out at the 13 

Caperton Center.  And there at the STEAM Academy we had 14 

students from all six of the middle schools.  We had a 15 

different school each day of the week and one day of the 16 

week we had students from both Vandevender and 17 

Williamstown at the same time. 18 

  In that experience I had students from both of 19 

those schools' populations in my classroom at the same 20 

time.  And I will say that at the beginning there was 21 

some division between the two school groups and I think 22 

that's something that's potential anytime you're joining 23 

two groups of people that don’t know each other.   24 
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     But I think with time and with some community 1 

building and  maybe some team building activities at the 2 

schools I'm hopeful that those students who are absorbed 3 

from Vandevender can build relationships with the 4 

students at Hamilton and Jackson. 5 

  I know my son participated in cross country 6 

this season for part of the season at Hamilton and they 7 

had students from Vandevender who participated in the 8 

cross country team together with the Hamilton students.  9 

And from my perspective and observations that seemed to 10 

go really well.  The students came together.  They 11 

formed a team together.  And I think that I'm hopeful 12 

that the community of the two -- three schools will be 13 

able to come together and, once those populations are 14 

absorbed, have time to get to know each other.  I'm 15 

hopeful that that will be a smooth transition and 16 

eventually -- obviously the sad thing for the 17 

Vandevender students and staff to be losing their 18 

school, that would be hard for anyone, but I'm hopeful 19 

that those groups will be able to come together and form 20 

a community, a new community.  So that's all I have to 21 

say. 22 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  I want to share with you one 23 

thing.  At Hamilton Mr. Campbell has two copies of this 24 
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in his office as well as the LSIC chair.  This has all 1 

the information I was sharing with you with detailed 2 

information and if that helps also with the folks at 3 

Vandevender there's a copy -- two copies of this in the 4 

office at Vandevender that you can also read through 5 

which will help explain the transition and the staff 6 

members that we're adding. 7 

  MS. THOMPSON:  Perfect.  Thank you.  8 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   9 

     Aaron, would you like to come back down?  10 

Awesome. 11 

  (Applause) 12 

  MR. RABER:  Say what? 13 

  MR. RUSSELL:  Can I take this off? 14 

  MR. RABER:  Absolutely.  Sure. 15 

  MR. RABER:  Ah, never mind. 16 

  MR. RABER:  Just pull it right off.  You can't 17 

break it. 18 

  MR. RUSSELL:  Do I have to say my name again? 19 

  MR. RABER:  Huh? 20 

  MR. RUSSELL:  Do I have to say my name again? 21 

  MR. RABER:  No, you're good. 22 

  MR. RUSSELL:  All right.  Okay.   23 

     I know that most of my classmates walk to 24 



 

 

Nancy S. Jarrell, CCR 

304-615-8656 

21 

school and I worry about what's going to happen when 1 

they walk an extra three miles.  And I know that you say 2 

that it is only three miles but, you know, it's a long 3 

three miles along Grand Central Avenue if they're going 4 

to Jackson or I mean even just walking up here if 5 

they're going to Hamilton.       6 

     And one of my other concerns is the fact that 7 

I -- as a Vandy kid I did summer band with just about 8 

all the other middle schools in the county.  And when I 9 

said that I was from Vandevender they would give me a 10 

look and they would say, "Oh, isn't that a bad school?"  11 

"No."   12 

  But I feel like that would be even worse with 13 

Vandevender kids going to Hamilton or Jackson because 14 

they don’t understand really.  And -- 15 

  MR. RABER:  You're doing great. 16 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  You're doing a good job. 17 

  MS. JOHNSON:  You are.  Thank you.  18 

  MR. RUSSELL:  Okay.  I mean things in the 19 

world are changing more than before in middle school in 20 

particular, I know, is a time of change, great change.  21 

I mean and if they have to change schools in the middle 22 

of that, that can make it even worse on our students.  23 

And I'm just very worried to be honest. 24 
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  MR. RABER:  Yep, you're good. 1 

  MS. JOHNSON:  You're good.  Thank you.  2 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.  Great job.  Thank you.  3 

  (Applause) 4 

  MR. RABER:  Madam Superintendent, in regards 5 

to transportation, can you provide some more detail?  6 

Because I think having heard a little bit there's some 7 

confusion into busing and what will be available. 8 

  SUPT. WILLIS:  Yeah, I've talked with Chad and 9 

Pam both in our transportation department.  So all of 10 

the students at Vandevender will have access to bus 11 

transportation to Jackson or to Hamilton.   There will 12 

be no walkers.  So I don't want anybody to worry about 13 

that part. 14 

  The Jackson after-school bus, that's something 15 

we've never done in Wood County before but we will talk 16 

to the Jackson sports teams and see when their practices 17 

will be so that we can arrange transportation so the 18 

kids can participate. 19 

  MR. RABER:  Thank you.   20 

     There being no further speakers before the 21 

Board of Education for the special meeting we are 22 

adjourned at 6:25 p.m.  We will reconvene with our next 23 

special meeting at 7:30 p.m. at Jackson Middle School.  24 
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----- 1 

(The proceedings were concluded at 6:25 p.m.) 2 

----- 3 
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1.  Opening of Meeting 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Wood County Board of Education met on Thursday, October 24, 2024 at Jackson 

Middle School, 1601 34th Street, Vienna, WV.  President Raber called the meeting to 

order at 8:30 pm. 

 

 B.  Roll Call 

 

      The following Board members were present:  Justin Raber, Rick Olcott, Ron Tice,  

      and Judy Johnson.  Sarah Townsend was absent. 

 

       A quorum was established. 

 

      2.  School Closure Board Action       

 

 A.  Proposed Action of the Board:  Fairplains Elementary School 

 

                  Justin Raber moved and it was seconded by Rick Olcott to close Fairplains  

                  Elementary School at the end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to merge  

                  Fairplains Elementary School into the existing Martin Elementary School at  

                  at that time. 

 

                  The motion passed unanimously. 

        

 B.  Proposed Action of the Board:  VanDevender Middle School 

 

                  Justin Raber moved and it was seconded by Judy Johnson to close VanDevender 

                  Middle School at the end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to merge VanDevender 

                  Middle School into Jackson Middle School and Hamilton Middle School at that time. 

 

                  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

            C.  CEFP Amendments for Closure of Fairplains Elementary 

 

                  Justin Raber moved and it was seconded by Ron Tice to approve the amendments 

                  for the Comprehensive Education Facilities Plan (CEFP) for the closure of Fairplains 

                  Elementary. 

 

       3.  Closing of Meeting 

 

            A.  Adjournment             

 

       President Raber adjourned the meeting at 8:44 pm. 
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Special Meeting - School Closure Board Action

8:30 p.m.
Jackson Middle School
1601 34th Street
Vienna, WV 26105
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Meeting : Oct 24, 2024 - Special Meeting - School Closure 
Board Action
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2. School Closure Board Action
Subject : A. Proposed Action of the Board: Fairplains 

Elementary School

Meeting : Oct 24, 2024 - Special Meeting - School Closure 
Board Action

Category : 2. School Closure Board Action

Access : Public

Type : Action

Recommended Action : Recommend to close Fairplains Elementary School at the 
end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to merge Fairplains 
Elementary School into the existing Martin Elementary 
School at that time.

Subject : B. Proposed Action of the Board: VanDevender 
Middle School

Meeting : Oct 24, 2024 - Special Meeting - School Closure 
Board Action

Category : 2. School Closure Board Action

Access : Public

Type : Action

Recommended Action : Recommend to close VanDevender Middle School at the 
end of the 2024-2025 school year, and to merge 
VanDevender Middle School into Jackson Middle School 



and Hamilton Middle School at that time.

Subject : C. CEFP Amendments for Closure of Fairplains 
Elementary

Meeting : Oct 24, 2024 - Special Meeting - School Closure 
Board Action

Category : 2. School Closure Board Action

Access : Public

Type : Action

Recommended Action : Recommend approval of the amendments for the 
Comprehensive Education Facilities Plan (CEFP) for the 
closure of Fairplains Elementary.
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3. Closing of Meeting
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----- 1 

PROCEEDINGS 2 

----- 3 

  MR. RABER:  It is now 8:30 p.m. and I call the 4 

special meeting of the Wood County Board of Education to 5 

order.   6 

     I will note that four members of the Board are 7 

here, Ms. Townsend being absent this evening. 8 

  Moving to our school closure Board action, 9 

during this portion -- this meeting we do not have 10 

delegations and public comment due to the previous one, 11 

two, three, four, five meetings.  We did have all of the 12 

delegations and public comment. 13 

  Pursuant to West Virginia Code 18-5-13 and 18-14 

5-13A as well as West Virginia Department of Education 15 

policy 6200 and 6204 we can move forward with the 16 

proposed action regarding the school closure action 17 

items that we have this evening. 18 

  Therefore I move to close Fairplains 19 

Elementary School at the end of 2024-2025 school year 20 

and to merge Fairplains Elementary School into the 21 

existing Martin Elementary School at this time.  Is 22 

there a second? 23 

  MR. OLCOTT:  I'll second that. 24 
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  MR. RABER:  It has been moved by Mr. Raber and 1 

seconded by Mr. Olcott to close Fairplains Elementary 2 

School at the end of the 2024-25 school year and to 3 

merge Fairplains Elementary School into the existing 4 

Martin Elementary School at this time.  Is there 5 

discussion? 6 

  Mr. Olcott. 7 

  MR. OLCOTT:  How much time do I have?   8 

  MR. RABER:  We're all hungry. 9 

  MR. OLCOTT:  Yeah, I won't take very long but 10 

I just -- some of the comments that we've heard at some 11 

of the hearings that we have -- I'll go back to 2010 12 

school hearings where we did it for Worthington at 13 

Jefferson, only 200 people.  And I just hope the public 14 

understands that we look at energy utilization indexes 15 

and facility modifiability and the geographic proximity 16 

to other schools, ADA compliance, student enrollment.  17 

There's a lot of things that go into it, not just 18 

looking at numbers. 19 

  And it's a comprehensive piece that's done 20 

spring-boarding off of the CEFP.  And being a part of 21 

the last two CEFPs in 2010 and 2020 they both have laid 22 

out a road map.  23 

  I wish we were in a different spot to where 24 



 

 

Nancy S. Jarrell, CCR 

304-615-8656 

5 

our area was growing and new businesses were coming in 1 

but I've been a part of 20 years of downsizing and it's 2 

not a pleasant experience to go through.  But I do 3 

believe that this Board has been very diligent and I'm 4 

proud of all of you that you have approached it, and the  5 

Superintendent and the staff have approached it the 6 

right way by looking at a lot of different things, you 7 

know, structural safety layouts and logistics.  And at 8 

no point have we ever wanted to pick on one SES school.  9 

That's not what this is about.   10 

  We didn't move forward in 2020 and the process 11 

began back in 2010 when Worthington was in our previous 12 

CEFP in 2010.   13 

  And so I think it's real important that the 14 

community understand that we're trying to -- we're not 15 

trying, we are being fiscally responsible.  At the same 16 

time we want to take care of our kids because if we 17 

don't -- I've had to deal with this somewhat in the 18 

corporate world.  If you don't rightsize your assets 19 

with your student population, which drives your income, 20 

then not doing so, you create a disservice to the 21 

students because your resources are spread too thin or 22 

nonexistent. 23 

  And so it's one of those unattractive things 24 
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that we have to do to make sure that we have the right 1 

number of schools, we have the right assets in place to 2 

provide good education for all of our students, and 3 

sometimes we have to do undesirable things like closing 4 

schools.  I tend to term it as rightsizing our assets, 5 

our facilities and our people. 6 

  And so I hope that the public understands.  7 

That's been my approach for 20 years.  And with this 8 

process we've gone through this week -- it's been a long 9 

process -- for me it's still that same principle that we 10 

don't sacrifice that.  And I just wanted to share that 11 

this evening because I've got a little bit longer tenure 12 

with some of this and want to make sure the group, that 13 

we're following the right process and I'm pretty proud 14 

of the work that everybody's done.  It's pretty 15 

extensive and well-done. 16 

 ` MR. RABER:  When I look at our student 17 

enrollment and the population of Wood County over 18 

roughly a decade Wood County's population has decreased 19 

by about 3,500 citizens.  During that same time period 20 

Wood County Schools' population, student population, has 21 

decreased by roughly 2,000.  So of that 3,500, 2,000 of 22 

those citizens were school-age students.  And we can't 23 

operate a system with the number of facilities and staff 24 
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that we have based upon a declining student enrollment.    1 

  And I think a lot of this is really due to, if 2 

you look back at the trends in 2008 and what higher ed 3 

is starting to see this year, next year and especially 4 

the year after, is they're going through an enrollment 5 

cliff.  We are experiencing that enrollment cliff now 6 

because we have the school-age children because with the 7 

Great Recession that started in 2008 people started 8 

having less kids or no kids.  And when I look at then 9 

population data, right now we are losing almost two 10 

times the number of citizens, what is being born in Wood 11 

County.  And I think that is a very telling sign of 12 

where as a community we're going, which we don't have a 13 

reason.  We don't cause that.  It's a fact that our 14 

population in Wood County is getting older.   15 

  You know, back in 2013 there was a difference 16 

between births and deaths of about six people.  And now 17 

in a decade it's half -- half of those that -- of deaths 18 

that occur in a year only half of that number is being 19 

replaced by births.  And that is scary for our community 20 

because we're not going to have down the road as many 21 

tax paying citizens when we have birth and death rates 22 

at this level. 23 

  And one of the big concerns 24 
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that I have is if we don't make the hard decisions now 1 

and we say at the end of the day, "We're going to wait, 2 

we're going to wait, we're going to wait" and kick the 3 

can down the path more and more, we're going to come to 4 

a position where we financially can't afford it, we are 5 

being irresponsible and the State comes in and takes us 6 

over.   7 

          And that in my opinion should never happen in 8 

Wood County because we have the leadership within our 9 

administration, within this Board to assure that that 10 

doesn't happen.  Because if the State comes in and takes 11 

us over they make those decisions.  They will say, 12 

"We're closing schools." 13 

  And one of the biggest issues that people have 14 

is we want decisions to stay local.  And if the State 15 

comes in those decisions are no longer local.  That's 16 

people down in Charleston making those decisions and 17 

they don't know what's best for our community.  They may 18 

see, okay, we have this school and we don't need that 19 

school and not have plans in place as we move forward.   20 

     So I think this, you know, is absolutely 21 

necessary as we move forward and it's not an easy 22 

decision but is one that we have to make. 23 

  MR. RABER:  Ms. Johnson. 24 
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  MS. JOHNSON:  You know, I'm probably the only 1 

one on this Board that has been through a transition 2 

such as this.  When I began teaching at Jefferson 3 

Elementary it was a small school.  There was still 4 

Washington Junior High next door.  They were two 5 

separate buildings not connected in any way and it was 6 

decided to close Pleasant Valley, Murphytown and Park 7 

Elementary schools.  Those schools came into Jefferson 8 

and also many teachers from around the county 9 

transferred there.   10 

  I saw it.  We all had anxiety from every 11 

school including Jefferson but it was a positive thing.  12 

We learned, we had more teachers, more students that we 13 

learned from each other.  We built that family community 14 

that so many at the schools have been talking about the 15 

last few nights.  We built it together starting together 16 

and it's so important.  And, thank you, Jeff, for 17 

speaking tonight because it's so important, the 18 

leadership, you and Ann and the teachers in this school, 19 

you're the ones (inaudible) this transition that make it 20 

a positive experience and I know you want to. 21 

  But it can be.  We learned from each other.  22 

We learned to plan together, collaborate together and we 23 

built our own family team after consolidation.  And it 24 
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was probably the best experience of my life.  Candace 1 

came in after the consolidation.  She knows the strong 2 

teachers we all developed to be and we -- it was just a 3 

great experience.  And I think a lot of the parents at 4 

that time.  We had 850 students in that school the first 5 

year of consolidation, five of every grade level. 6 

  And like I said I found it to be a positive 7 

experience.  So those of you that have some anxiety, I 8 

hope you find it but it'll depend on the parents, the 9 

community, the teachers and the administration to make 10 

it one and I feel sure you will. 11 

  MR. OLCOTT:  That's good. 12 

  MR. RABER:  Okay.  Is there any further 13 

comment or discussion? 14 

  (No response) 15 

  MR. RABER:  Carrying on, the question before 16 

you is to close Fairplains Elementary School at the end 17 

of the 2024-25 school year and the merge Fairplains 18 

Elementary School into the existing Martin Elementary 19 

School at that time.   20 

     All those in favor please signify by saying 21 

"aye." 22 

  (All Board members indicate "aye.") 23 

  MR. RABER:  All those opposed signify by 24 
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saying "no." 1 

  (No response) 2 

  MR. RABER:  Motion carries.   3 

  I move to close Vandevender Middle School at 4 

the end of the 2024-2025 school year and to merge 5 

Vandevender Middle School into Jackson Middle School and 6 

Hamilton Middle School at that time.  Is there a second? 7 

  MS. JOHNSON:  Second. 8 

  MR. RABER:  It has been moved by Mr. Raber and 9 

seconded by Ms. Johnson to to close Vandevender Middle 10 

School at the end of the 2024-2025 school year and to 11 

merge Vandevender Middle School into Jackson Middle 12 

School and Hamilton Middle School at that time.  Is 13 

there any discussion? 14 

  (No response) 15 

  MR. RABER:  Hearing none the question before 16 

you is to close Vandevender Middle School at the end of 17 

the 2024-25 school year and to merge Vandevender Middle 18 

School into Jackson Middle School and Hamilton Middle 19 

School at that time.  All those in favor signify by 20 

saying "aye." 21 

  (All Board members indicate "aye.") 22 

  MR. RABER:  All those opposed signify by 23 

saying "no." 24 
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  (No response) 1 

  MR. RABER:  Motion carries. 2 

  I move the approval of the amendments for the 3 

Comprehensive Education Facility Plan (CEFP) for the 4 

closure of Fairplains Elementary School.  Is there a 5 

second? 6 

  MR. TICE:  Second. 7 

  MR. RABER:  It has been moved by Mr. Raber and 8 

seconded by Mr. Tice for the approval of the amendments 9 

for the Comprehensive Education Facility Plan (CEFP) for 10 

the closure of Fairplains Elementary School.  Is there 11 

any discussion? 12 

  MR. OLCOTT:  Just one final comment because I 13 

know you don't have Board member comments on the agenda.  14 

But I think it's important to note that this is really 15 

the first phase of a larger CEFP plan.  We have five 16 

more schools to close while we build three new.  And 17 

they take a little bit of a different flavor because 18 

they do have new schools on the other end of them.   19 

     And so I think it's good that we're making the 20 

CEFP amendments so that it's a live and living document 21 

and that the public understand this is step one of a lot 22 

of work ahead in the next three to four years.  So it's 23 

an exciting time for Wood County Schools and I hope we 24 
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view it that way. 1 

  MR. RABER:  Is there any further discussion? 2 

  (No response) 3 

  MR. RABER:  Hearing none the question before 4 

you is the approval of the amendment for the 5 

Comprehensive Education Facility Plan (CEFP) for the 6 

closure of Fairplains Elementary School.  All those in 7 

favor signify by saying "aye." 8 

  (All Board members indicate "aye.") 9 

  MR. RABER:  All those opposed signify by 10 

saying "no." 11 

  (No response) 12 

  MR. RABER:  Motion carries. 13 

  There being no further business before the 14 

Wood County Board of Education special meeting this 15 

meeting is adjourned at 8:44 p.m.  16 

----- 17 

(The proceedings were concluded at 8:44 p.m.) 18 

----- 19 
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 24 
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THE STATE OF   : 

WEST VIRGINIA  : 

    : SS:   C E R T I F I C A T E 

COUNTY OF WOOD  : 

 

  I, NANCY S. JARRELL, CCR, Certified Court 

Reporter and Notary Public within and for the State of West 

Virginia, duly commissioned and qualified, do hereby 

certify that the hearing above was by me reduced to text 

and recorded by Stenomask; afterwards reduced to 

transcription under my direction and control; that the 

foregoing is a true and correct transcription of the 

testimony given by said witness. 

 

  I do further certify that this testimony was 

taken at the time and place in the foregoing caption 

specified, and was completed without adjournment.   

 

  I do further certify that I am not a relative, 

counsel or attorney of either party, or otherwise 

interested in the event of this action. 

 

   

  IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 

and affixed my seal of office at Parkersburg, West 

Virginia, on the 3rd day of November 2024. 

 

 

                       ______/s/Nancy S. Jarrell, CCR_______      
       Nancy S. Jarrell, CCR 

           Notary Public  
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